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VIMRDECO

NOTICE
Invitation to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

To: Shareholders of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company

The Board of Directors of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock
Company (stock code: VMS) respectfully invites the shareholders to attend the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, with the details as follows:

1. Time: 8:00 AM, Friday, April 18, 2025.

2. Venue: Meeting Room, 9th Floor, Menrva Hotel, No. 4 Tran Hung Dao /@Eﬁ:&
Street, Hoang Van Thu Ward, Hong Bang District, Hai Phong City. g‘ﬁ) CONG
f? % o C(j PH/Z

3. Agenda of the Meeting: X\ BHATIR

- Report on the Activities of the Board of Directors in 2024 and the Plan fo)ls?:*bw NG _Ej

2025;

- Report on the results of business operations in 2024 and the orientations,
tasks, and plan for 2025;

- Report on the activities of the Company's Board of Supervisors in 2024 and
the plan for 2025;

- Report on the approval of the audited financial statements for 2024, the plan
for fund allocation, and profit distribution for 2024;

- Report proposing the approval of the settlement of remuneration for the
Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors in 2024 and the plan for 2025;

- Report on the selection of an independent auditing firm to audit the financial
statements for 2025.

- Voting on the approval of matters under the authority of the 2025 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders.
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4. Conditions for attending the meeting:

- Shareholders holding VMS shares whose names are on the shareholder list
finalized on the record date of March 18, 2025.

- Shareholders who cannot attend the General Meeting may authorize another
person to attend on their behalf (using the attached Letter of Authorization).

5. Other matters:

- The documents for the General Meeting are published on the website of
Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company. Shareholders can download
them at http://www.vimadeco.com.vn (section: Investor Relations).

- In order to ensure the thorough organization of the General Meeting,
shareholders are kindly requested to register for attendance or authorize another
person to attend before April 17, 2025, as follows:

+ Confirmation of attendance at the General Meeting: Register directly with
Mr. Chu Hong Linh — 0902094644.;

+ In case of authorizing another person to attend the General Meeting: Send
the authorization letter directly to the address Vietnam Maritime Development Joint
Stock Company, No. 11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City, or
scan and send it via email to: linhch@vimadeco.com.vn. N

- Shareholders or authorized representatives attending the General Meeting . N
must bring this Notice, their ID card/Citizen ID, and the original authorization letter ‘ﬁ"5

for registration procedures at the General Meeting. ‘g ;;\ 3\‘

Respectfully invited.

Hai Phong, March 27, 2025

ON BEHALF OF
OF DIRECTORS

CONG ©l %IRMAN
Recipients: _1%!
- As above; i

- archived by General Affairs
and the Company Secretary.
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\;“Le Duy Duong
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NOu24) \Iﬁ'-NUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Starting from 08:00 AM on April 18,2025, in Hai Phong

No. Contents Time

Welcoming Delegates/Shareholders; Shareholder

. Registration and Document Collection 08:00 - 08:30
Flag Salute and Opening of the Meeting

5 Report on Shareholder Eligibility Verification, 08:30 — 09:00
Introduction of Delegates, and Invitation of the Presidium to ) '
Chair the Meeting

3 Introduction and Appointment of the Secretariat, Approval of 09:00 — 09:05
the Vote Counting Committee at the Meeting ’ '

4 Approval of the Meeting Regulations 09:05-09:10

S5 | Approval of the Meeting Agenda 09:10 - 09:15

6 Report on the Activities of the Board of Directors in 2024
and the Plan for 2025

7 Report on Business Performance in 2024 and Directions,
Tasks, and Plans for 2025

2 Report on the Activities of the Board of Supervisors in 2024

and the Plan for 2025

Report on the Approval of the Audited Financial Statements 09:15 — 10:15
9 for 2024, Fund Allocation Plan, and Profit Distribution for
2024

Report Proposing the Approval of the Remuneration
10 | Settlement for the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors in 2024 and the Plan for 2025

Report on the Selection of an Independent Audit Firm for the

11 Audit of the 2025 Financial Statements

12 Discus.sion at the Meeting; Voting on I_\/Iatters within the 10:15 — 10:30
Authority of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

13 | Break and Vote Counting 10:30 — 10:45

14 | Approval of the Meeting Minutes and Resolutions 10:45 —10:55

15 | Closing of the Meeting 10:55-11:00
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s wﬁ%TT}:R OF AUTHORIZATION
Attending the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
To: VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

1. The Authorizing Party:

Full Name of Shareholder (Individual/Organization): ..........ccccevveeeeeriririesereeresrsssessersesenns

Legal Representative (for Organization):........cc.cccceoviiioiriierio oo

ID Card/Citizen ID/Passport/Business Registration Certificate NO.:.......ooovvvvvvieveveennn,

ISSUEA DY ..vovvvcesee e Date OF ISSUE . c.vcveuieiiceeicetiieic e |
AIESS 1ttt ettt ettt ettt e e en e e en s et e e e e et e e e e eas et et eeeeeaas \

AGREES TO AUTHORIZE:
2. The Authorized Party:
Full Name of Individual/Organization: ........c.ceeueuevverereerioriiesiorsseeeeesereeeeeesereesesesessssesenns
ID Card/Citizen ID/Passport/Business Registration Certificate NO.:......cocoovvveeeveirrrinnnn,

Issued By s DIt TERUE ovvismininiss ideepramnpanserssmmmsmomsmsresrass sessaseses

F N [ 1T SRR

Alternatively, the Shareholder may authorize all of their shares to one (01) of the
members of the Board of Directors of VMS from the list below (mark X or \ in the box to
the left of the name of the authorized member of the Board of Directors:

O Mr. Le Duy Duong - Chairman of the Board of Directors
[1 Mr. Nguyen Chi Kien
[0 Mr. Dao Hong Chuong Member of the Board of Directors
O Mr. Vu Viet Thang - Member of the Board of Directors
OOMr. Vu Chau Thanh - Independent Member of the Board of Directors

Member of the Board of Directors

3. Content of Authorization
Number of Shares AUtROriZed: ......cciiiiecenneienennneinsesessseeiessssesersssersssssessens
(I TVOFAS: ..., )
Scope of Authorization: The Authorized Party is entitled to attend and vote on
matters at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders of Vietham Maritime



Development Joint Stock Company on behalf of the Authorizing Party, exercising all
shareholder rights and obligations related to the authorized shares at the meeting. The
Authorized Party is not permitted to reauthorize a third party

Duration of Authorization: This Letter of Authorization is valid only for the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock
Company held on April 18,2025

1 take full legal responsibility for this authorization and commit to strictly complying with the
applicable laws, the Charter of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company, and I
pledge nol to make any complaints in the future.

The Authorizing Party The Authorized Party
(Signature, Full Name, and Seal) (Signature, Full Name, and Seal)

NG TY
' PHAN
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
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Draft Hai Phong, March ..., 2025

REGULATION ON ORGANIZATION AND OPERATION
AT THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to:

- The Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020, as amended and supplemented by
Law No. 03/2022 passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of
Vietnam on January 11, 2022, and its guiding documents;

- The Law on Securities No. 59/2019/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019, effective from January 1, 2021;
and Law No. 56/2024/QH15 of the National Assembly amending and supplementing
certain provisions of the Law on Securities, the Law on Accounting, the Law on
Independent Audit, the Law on State Budget, the Law on Management and Use of
Public Property, the Law on Tax Administration, the Law on Personal Income Tax,
the Law on National Reserves, and the Law on Handling of Administrative

Violations;
- Charter on Organization and Operation of Viet Nam Maritime Development Joint
Stock Company.
Chapter 1
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Article 1. Scope and Subjects of Application

1. This Regulation applies to the organization of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company (hereinafter
referred to as the “Company™).

2. This Regulation specifically stipulates the conditions for organizing the Meeting, the
rights and obligations of the participants, and the procedures for conducting the
Meeting.

3. Shareholders and participants of the Meeting are responsible for complying with the
provisions of this Regulation.

Article 2. Interpretation of Terms

2.1 “Company” or “VMS” refers to Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock
Company.

22 “AGM?” or “General Meeting” refers to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company.

2.3 Authorized Representative of a Shareholder” refers to a person who has been duly
authorized in writing by a shareholder to attend and exercise the shareholder’s legal
rights at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with the
law and the Company's Charter.



2.4 “Delegate” refers to a shareholder or a duly authorized representative of a
shareholder attending the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company.

Article 3. Conditions for Attending the General Meeting

All individual and institutional shareholders holding shares of the Company, whose
names are listed in the shareholder register as of March 18, 2025, provided by the
Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation, or their duly authorized
representatives in writing, are entitled to attend the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of the Company.

Article 4. Regulations on Authorization to Attend the General Meeting

The authorization for a representative to attend the General Meeting must be made in
writing and signed by both the authorizing shareholder and the authorized representative.
The authorized representative must present an ID card/Citizen ID/Passport that matches
the information stated in the authorization document, ensuring compliance with the Law
on Enterprises, the Company's Charter, and the provisions of this Regulation.
Specifically, as follows:

1. Shareholders entitled to attend the General Meeting under the law may authorize
an individual or organization to attend on their behalf. In case a shareholder
appoints multiple authorized representatives, the specific number of shares
assigned to each representative must be clearly determined. If the shareholder does
not specify the number of shares authorized to each representative, the shares shall
be equally divided among all authorized representatives.

2. The authorization for an individual or organization to attend the General Meeting
must be made in writing. The authorization document shall be prepared in
accordance with civil law regulations and must clearly state the name of the
authorized individual or organization, the number of shares authorized, and must
bear signatures as stipulated below:

a. In the case where an individual shareholder is the authorizing party, the letter
of authorization must bear the signature of that shareholder and the signature of
the authorized individual or the legal representative of the authorized
organization (with the organization's seal, if applicable);

b. In the case where an institutional shareholder is the authorizing party, the letter
of authorization must bear the signatures of the authorized representative, the
legal representative of the institutional shareholder (with the institutional
shareholder’s seal), and the authorized individual or the legal representative of
the authorized organization attending the meeting;

c. In other cases, the letter of authorization must bear the signatures of the legal
representative of the shareholder and the authorized representative attending
the meeting.

Individuals or organizations authorized to attend the General Meeting of
Shareholders must present the letter of authorization when registering for
attendance before entering the meeting room.

3. Revocation of an approved authorization: Shareholders must submit an official
written request to revoke the authorization to the Company before the official
opening of the General Meeting. The revocation shall take effect from the time the
Company receives the official written request.

2



4. The revocation of authorization shall not be valid if the authorized representative
has already completed the meeting registration procedures with the Organizing
Committee on the meeting date or has cast a vote on any item in the Meeting
Agenda

Chapter 11

RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTICIPANTS OF THE GENERAL

MEETING

Article S. Rights and Obligations of Delegates Attending the General Meeting

L

Rights of Delegates Attending the General Meeting
Entitled to attend the General Meeting.
Informed by the Organizing Committee about the meeting agenda and content.

Receive voting cards and voting ballots indicating the number of shares owned, the
number of shares represented by authorization, and the corresponding voting rights.

Discuss and vote on all matters within the authority of the General Meeting in
accordance with the Law on Enterprises and the Company's Charter.

Provided with documents and the meeting agenda.

Delegates arriving late may still register to attend and participate in voting on
subsequent matters of the General Meeting. The Chairperson is not responsible for
pausing or re-voting on matters that have already been passed, and the validity of
previously adopted resolutions remains unaffected.

Obligations of Delegates Attending the General Meeting

Delegates attending the General Meeting must complete the registration procedures
with the Organizing Committee and present the following documents: Meeting
invitation, ID card/Citizen ID/Passport or a certified copy of the Enterprise
Registration Certificate, and a valid authorization letter (if applicable).

Comply with the provisions of the Law on Enterprises, the Company's Charter, and
this Regulation; sit in the designated area as instructed by the Organizing Committee;
maintain order and strictly adhere to the meeting’s rules and regulations; follow the
direction of the Chairperson and the Organizing Committee; and respect the
outcomes of the Meeting;

During the discussion session, shareholders or their authorized representatives have
the right to speak directly in the meeting room or submit their opinions in writing on
a contribution form to the Secretariat, which will report to the Chairperson for
arrangement and assignment of responsible individuals to respond. Shareholders’
opinions and contributions must be concise, focused on key discussion points, and
limited to matters within the agenda approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders.;

Any audio or video recording of the General Meeting must be publicly announced
and approved by the Chairperson of the Meeting;

Shareholders are obligated to attend and vote on the matters discussed at the General
Meeting.

Article 6. Rights and Obligations of the Voter Eligibility Examination Committee

3



The Voter Eligibility Examination Committee is responsible for:

Examining the eligibility of delegates attending the General Meeting, including the
documents specified in Clause 2, Article 5 of this Regulation.

Examining the validity and legality of the shareholder’s letter of authorization.

Registering shareholders for the meeting, issuing voting codes, and maintaining
records of shareholder registration information

Distributing General Meeting documents to delegates attending the Meeting,
including voting cards, voting ballots, and other related materials

Reporting to the General Meeting on the results of the voter eligibility examination.

Article 7. Rights and Obligations of the Chairperson of the General Meeting

1.

The Chairperson of the General Meeting is the Chairman of the Board of Directors of
the Company or another member of the Board of Directors authorized by the
Chairman to preside over the meeting. In case the Chairman is absent or temporarily
unable to perform their duties, the election of the Chairperson shall be conducted in
accordance with Article 28 of the Company’s Charter and the Law on Enterprises.

The Chairperson's decision on matters of order, procedures, or any unforeseen events
arising outside the agenda of the General Meeting shall be final.

The Chairperson may take necessary actions to conduct the General Meeting of
Shareholders in a lawful and orderly manner, ensuring that it reflects the will of the
majority of attending shareholders;

The Chairperson has the right to request the Organizing Committee or competent
authorities to maintain order during the meeting and to remove individuals who do
not comply with the Chairperson’s authority, intentionally disrupt order, or obstruct
the normal proceedings of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

The Chairperson shall conduct the General Meeting in accordance with the approved
agenda, rules, and regulations adopted by the General Meeting. The Chairperson has
the right to decline to respond or merely acknowledge shareholders’ contributions if
they fall outside the matters submitted for the General Meeting’s consideration.

The Chairperson shall appoint one or more persons as the Secretary of the meeting

At any time, the Chairperson has the right to take necessary measures to conduct the
meeting in a reasonable and orderly manner, in accordance with the approved
agenda, and reflecting the will of the majority of attendees, The Chairperson of the
General Meeting must implement these measures:

— Arrange seating at the venue of the General Meeting of Shareholders.
— Ensure the safety of all attendees at the meeting venues.

— Facilitate shareholders' participation (or continued participation) in the General
Meeting
The Chairperson has the right to postpone the General Meeting of Shareholders,
which has met the required number of registered attendees, to another time or change
the meeting venue in the following cases:
a. The meeting venue does not have enough convenient seating for all attendees.

b. Attendees directly disrupt the meeting, cause disorder, or pose a risk of
preventing the meeting from being conducted fairly and legally.



The maximum postponement period shall not exceed 03 days from the scheduled

opening date of the meeting.

9.

Other rights and obligations as stipulated in the Company’s Charter and the Law on
Enterprises.

Article 8. The Secretariat of the General Meeting
The Secretariat is appointed by the Chairperson and has the following duties:

Accurately and truthfully record the entire content and proceedings of the General
Meeting, including the discussed matters and any issues reserved at the Meeting;

Record the voting results of shareholders on the matters approved at the General
Meeting of Shareholders;

Receive shareholders' opinion contribution slips and forward them to the Chairperson
of the General Meeting;

Draft the minutes and resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and
perform supporting tasks as assigned by the Chairperson;

The Secretariat has the right to record and film the General Meeting of Shareholders
and store the recordings at the Company's headquarters.

Article 9. The Ballot Counting Committee

1.

The Ballot Counting Committee consists of one Head and members nominated by the
Chairperson of the General Meeting and approved by the General Meeting through
voting.

Duties of the Ballot Counting Committee:

The Ballot Counting Committee is responsible for inspecting, counting, and
supervising the voting process of shareholders, organizing the ballot counting, and
determining the election and voting results on matters approved at the General
Meeting;

Responsibilities of the Ballot Counting Committee

The Ballot Counting Committee is responsible for preparing the minutes of the vote
counting results and announcing them to the General Meeting; handing over the
minutes and all ballots to the Chairperson of the General Meeting or the Secretariat
of the General Meeting;

During the performance of its duties, the Ballot Counting Committee must work
honestly, accurately, and be responsible for the results;

The Ballot Counting Committee will have additional assistants to support the
distribution and collection of ballots to ensure the timely progress of the General
Meeting.

Chapter I1I
CONDUCTING THE GENERAL MEETING

Article 10. Conditions for Conducting the General Meeting

1.

The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders shall be conducted when the attending
delegates represent more than 50% of the total voting shares.

2. In case the first meeting does not satisfy the conditions for proceeding as stipulated

in Clause 1 of this Article, the conditions for conducting the General Meeting of
5



Shareholders shall be implemented in accordance with Clauses 2 and 3, Article 27 of
the Company's Charter.

Article 11. Methods of Conducting the General Meeting
1. The General Meeting is expected to take place within a single working session.

2. The General Meeting shall approve the meeting agenda, conduct discussions, and
approve each item listed in the agenda.

Article 12. Speaking at the General Meeting

The General Meeting of Shareholders will discuss each issue in the agenda. When
discussing the issues on the agenda, shareholders must adhere to the following
regulations:

— Principle: Delegates attending the General Meeting who wish to speak must raise
their Voting Card and obtain approval from the Chairperson of the meeting.
Delegates attending the meeting may register their topics for discussion through the
Meeting Secretary using a question form;

— Method of Speaking: Shareholders should speak concisely and focus on the main
issues that need to be discussed, in line with the agenda of the General Meeting that
has been approved. This ensures that the meeting proceeds as per the approved
agenda, the content does not violate the law, and it does not involve personal matters
or exceed the company's authorit;

— The Chairperson will arrange for shareholders to speak in the order they registered
and will also address any shareholder questions. Contributions or inquiries will be
collected together and answered in sequence. Shareholders can only participate in the
discussion during the designated discussion time of the General Meeting. If multiple
shareholders raise similar points, the Chairperson will select and provide a unified
response to all shareholders. Once no further shareholder comments are made, the
Chairperson will respond to each shareholder's query or designate someone from the
Board of Management to address the comments.

Chapter IV
VOTING, VOTING PROCEDURES AND
CONDITIONS FOR THE RESOLUTIONS OF THE GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS TO BE APPROVED

Article 13: Voting on the Issues at the General Meeting

All issues that require a vote in the meeting agenda of the General Meeting must be
discussed and publicly voted on by the General Meeting according to the following
principles:

— The General Meeting will conduct a direct vote on each issue that requires a vote at
the meeting. Shareholders or their authorized representatives will vote on all matters
to be decided at the General Meeting by raising their voting cards as directed by the
Chairperson or marking an "X" or "\" on the voting ballots. After voting on the
issues at the meeting, the ballots will be placed into the ballot box;

— The Vote Counting Committee will conduct the vote counting for the issues during
the General Meeting to determine the voting ratio for each issue that requires
approval from the General Meeting of Shareholders;



— Accordingly, each delegate attending the General Meeting will be provided with by

the organizing committee of the meeting:

= One (01) "Voting Card" with the delegate's code, the number of shares owned
and/or represented, bearing the company's official seal. This method is used for
voting on general issues such as: the regulations for organizing the meeting, the
agenda of the meeting, the personnel for the Election Committee, the meeting
minutes, and other matters;

= One (01) "Voting Ballot" with the delegate’s code, the total number of voting
shares owned and/or represented, bearing the company’s official seal. This ballot
is used for voting on reports and proposals presented at the meeting. This method
is used to vote on reports and proposals at the meeting.

3. Voting Rules
3.1 Method of Raising the Voting Card

Each delegate attending the meeting will be issued one (01) Voting Card. During the
voting process at the General Meeting, delegates will cast their vote by raising the
Voting Card. This method is used to approve general matters at the meeting,
excluding reports and proposals presented at the meeting.
Each issue presented before the General Meeting, within the authority of the General
Assembly of Shareholders, shall be voted on in sequence:

+ Approve (agree) with the content that has just been presented,
+ Disapprove (do not agree) with the content that has just been presented;
+ Abstain on the content that has just been presented.

If a delegate raises the voting card more than once for a particular issue, the
delegate's final opinion will be recorded for that voting item.

If a delegate does not raise the voting card for any of the issues of the General
Meeting, it will be considered as approval of that issue, and they will have no right to
file a complaint regarding rights related to that issue.

3.1 Method of submitting the voting ballot

a.

Delegates proceed to vote by filling out the Voting Ballot. For each voting issue,
delegates select one of the three options: 'Approve,' 'Disapprove,' or 'Abstain,’ which
are pre-printed on the Voting Ballot. They mark an 'X' or V' in the box corresponding
to their choice. After marking the voting issues, delegates sign, write their full name,
and place the Voting Ballot into the sealed ballot box at the General Meeting, as
instructed by the Ballot Counting Committee.

A valid Voting Ballot:

» The ballot is the pre-printed form provided by the Organizing Committee and
stamped with the company's seal as per the regulations.

» The ballot contains the full signature and clearly written name of the delegate.

= The ballot must not have any cross-outs, erasures, corrections, or damage to the
printed content. No additional voting content should be written. If any content
needs to be added, the delegate should write the correct order number of the issue
to be voted on, as instructed by the organizing committee. In case of an error in
voting, the shareholder may contact the organizing committee or the Ballot
Counting Committee to request a replacement Voting Ballot;
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*= Each voting ballot may contain multiple voting issues. A voting issue will be
considered valid if the delegate marks one of the three boxes: "Approve,"
"Disapprove," or "Abstain." A voting issue will be considered invalid if the
delegate does not mark any box or marks more than one box for the same voting
issue. In the case of a valid voting ballot with one or more invalid voting issues,
the valid issues will remain unaffected.

c. An invalid voting ballot:

= A ballot that is not based on the pre-printed template provided by the organizing
committee.

A voting ballot that does not have the full signature and does not clearly state the
delegate's name.

The voting ballot written with a pencil or tampered with by erasing, scraping,
correcting, or torn, or if any additional content not specified by the regulations is
written on the ballot, then all voting contents on the ballot are considered invalid.

The voting ballot has all voting contents considered invalid.

The ballot submitted after the Ballot Counting Committee has opened the ballot
box seal.

d. The ballot not collected:

It is the ballot issued at the General meeting but not returned to the Ballot Counting
Committee.

e. In the case where a delegate requests to exchange a damaged voting ballot (due to
being torn, damaged, or accidentally marked with additional symbols) and the
delegate has not yet submitted the ballot into the ballot box or the voting period has
not yet expired, the delegate has the right to directly approach the Ballot Counting
Committee to return the damaged ballot and exchange it for a new one to ensure their
rights. The Ballot Counting Committee will collect the damaged ballots and send
them back to the Presidium.

f. In the case where a delegate arrives late to the meeting, they still have the right to
register for the General Meeting and participate in voting on subsequent issues or
items. However, the delegate does not have the right to vote on issues that have
already been voted on. In this case, the validity of the previously voted items will not
be affected.

g. Check and summarize the results:

= The voting ballots, after being collected, will be checked for validity according to
the regulations. When summarizing the results of the collected ballots, valid
ballots, invalid ballots, and so on will be accounted for.

= The voting results will be determined for each voting item and calculated as a
percentage (%) rounded to four decimal places;

= The Ballot Counting Committee must clearly record the following details: the
number of voting shares for each voting item, the voting ratio for each voting
status: Valid, Invalid, Approved, Disapproved, Abstained;

= The Head of the Ballot Counting Committee is responsible for announcing the
ballot counting results at the General Meeting on behalf of the Presidium,;

Article 14. Approval of issues at the General Meeting.



The issues of the Shareholders' General Meeting are approved when It receives the
approval of the delegates present at the meeting, with the ratio specified in Article 29 of
the Company's Charter and the Enterprise Law.

Chapter V

MINUTES AND RESOLUTIONS OF THE SHAREHOLDERS' GENERAL
MEETING

Article 15. Minutes of the Shareholders' General Meeting:

- All the contents of the Shareholders' General Meeting are recorded by the Secretary
of the Meeting in the minutes. The meeting minutes are read and approved before
the meeting is adjourned,

- The minutes of the General Meeting, the minutes of shareholder eligibility
verification, the minutes of vote counting, and other documents are kept at the
Company's headquarters;

- The minutes of the General Meeting must be published on the Company's website
within 24 hours of the conclusion of the meeting.

Article 16. Resolutions of the Shareholders' General Meeting

- Based on the minutes of the Shareholders' General Meeting that have been
approved, the Chairman of the Meeting signs and issues the resolution of the
General Meeting on the issues that were discussed at the Shareholders' General
Meeting;

- The resolution of the Shareholders' General Meeting will be notified to the
shareholders by posting it on the Company's website.

Chapter VI
ENFORCEMENT PROVISIONS
Article 17. Enforcement Effectiveness:

1. This regulation consists of 6 chapters, 17 articles, and takes effect immediately after
being approved by the Shareholders' General Meeting.
2. Delegates and participants of the General Meeting are responsible for complying
with the provisions of this regulation.
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN

Le Duy Duong
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REPORT

Business performance in 2024 and directions, tasks, and business plan for 2025

To: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company

As assigned by the Company's Board of Directors, the Executive Board hereby
reports to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Vietnam Maritime
Development Joint Stock Company on the business performance in 2024 and the
directions, tasks, and business plan for 2025, as follows:

PART ONE
BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2024
1. Business Performance Results in 2024
1.1 Situation Characteristics

The Company entered the implementation of the 2024 plan amid numerous
challenges: The geographical location of warehouses and yards is no longer favorable
for the operations of shipping lines, leading to a primary focus on container leasing
(which is not highly effective) and infrastructure leasing (which does not generate
added value for the Company). The fuel trading business continues to be impacted by
the conflict between Russia and Ukraine, followed by the conflict in the Red Sea and
tensions among countries in the Middle East, causing unpredictable fluctuations in fuel
prices. Additionally, the shortage of containers has significantly affected warehouse
operations and container leasing activities.

However, through effort and a proactive adaptability mindset, the Company has
gradually overcome difficulties and implemented flexible solutions to maintain stable
operations. As a result, the Company has achieved most of the key targets set in the
plan, reaffirming its resilience and ability to respond to challenges in the business
environment.

1.2 2024 Key Performance Indicators



Business Indicators

Unit: Million VND

No. Indicators 2024 Plan 2024 Actual Comparison
Performance
M 13 3) 4) (4)03)
1 Revenue 215,000 226,612 105%
2 Profit Before Tax 19,000 19,159 101%
3 D1V'1dend Payout 10% 9% 90%
Ratio
Labor and Salary Indicators
No. Indicators 2024 Plan 2024 Actual Comparison
Performance
(1 2 €) “4) (4)(3)
I Total Average Number of 135.5 116.6
Employees
1 | Managers 2.5 1.0 40%
2 | Employees 133.0 115.6 87%
IT | Actual Salary Fund 28,096.8 22,756.2 81%
1 | Managers
1.1 | Salary Fund (Million VND) 1,312.5 584.6 46%
Average Salary (Million o
1.2 VND/Person/Month) 41.671 48.719 116%
2 | Employees
2.1 | Salary Fund (Million VND) 26,784.3 22,171.6 87%
Average Salary (Million o
2.2 VND/Person/Month) 15.983 15.983 100%

1.3 Evaluation of Business Performance in 2024

In 2024, in addition to strengthening business development activities, the

Company also generated certain non-recurring income, such as:

- Disposal of fully depreciated assets with no remaining usable value: VND
1,060 million

- 30% reduction in land rental fees in Ho Chi Minh City: VND 1,510 million
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- Certain payables with undefined obligations: VND 741 million

- Transfer of the Company's investment in Hai Au Company: 6,210 million
VND (Revenue from investment transfer: VND 11,610 million; Cost of investment:
VND 5,400 million).

The total non-recurring income of the Company in 2024 is VND 9,521 million.
The specific business performance for each service is as follows:

1.3.1 Warehousing Services:

This is a traditional service that generates significant revenue and profit for the
Company. Warehousing operations primarily involve business cooperation with long-
standing partners, infrastructure leasing, and providing services to container leasing
companies and domestic shipping lines.

- In Hai Phong: The Company continued to lease infrastructure to existing
customers. At Chua Ve Yard, despite actively working directly with authorities and
coordinating with Vinabridge to complete the necessary procedures for the unsealing
of the CFS warehouse, the Company only received the handover of the warehouse
from Vinabridge on October 10, 2024. Upon receiving the warehouse, the Company
immediately carried out repairs to address damages caused by Typhoon No. 3 to put
the warehouse into operation while seeking suitable customers for leasing. As a result,
the Company did not generate any revenue from warehouse leasing at Chua Ve Yard
throughout 2024. At Dong Hai Yard, in addition to maintaining services for leasing
companies, the Company successfully attracted small domestic shipping lines, such as
Prince Ocean and Now Star Lines, to utilize its warehousing services. However, from
the third quarter of 2024, the ongoing container shortage severely impacted leasing
volumes, and the fluctuating container volume of Prince Ocean further contributed to
the decline in yard utilization efficiency. To increase yard occupancy, in addition to
strengthening marketing efforts toward shipping lines, the Company has also expanded
services for frozen food storage and sought customers for vehicle parking services to
enhance yard utilization efficiency.

The warehousing operation results in Hai Phong in 2024: Revenue: 16,003
million VND (119% of 2023, 99% of the 2024 plan), Operating profit (before
management expenses): 1,111 million VND (77% of 2023, 24% of the 2024 plan).

- At Ho Chi Minh City Branch:

+ The Company has maintained business cooperation with customers at Nam
Hoa 1 Yard and ICD Phuoc Long. The business cooperation contract for Nam Hoa 1
Yard saw a revenue increase of approximately 210% compared to the previous
contract, effective from September 1, 2023; The warehouse leasing contract at Nam
Hoa 1 saw a unit price increase of approximately 22% compared to the previous
contract, effective from October 18, 2024; The business cooperation contract for
operating ICD Phuoc Long Yard saw a revenue increase of approximately 49%
compared to the previous contract, effective from January 1, 2024. Although the
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revenue growth from business cooperation at Nam Hoa 1 Yard and ICD Phuoc Long
contributed to improving the Company's business performance in 2024, the entire area
of Nam Hoa 1 Yard and a portion of ICD Phuoc Long (approximately 4 hectares) fall
within the Bac Rach Chiec - Phuoc Long A project. The Company has been using this
land without complete legal documentation and has not fulfilled its financial
obligations to the State. As a result, in 2017, the Company was subject to a VND 9.3
billion retroactive land use charge. Currently, this land faces a potential risk of being
reclaimed or requiring the Company to fulfill financial obligations to the State.

+ At Nam Hoa 2 Yard: From January 1, 2024, the area for business cooperation

was reduced to approximately 16,900 m? as the State reclaimed around 3,000 m? for
road construction. The ongoing container shortage in 2024 led to a significant decline
in container leasing volumes, causing sharp decreases in revenue from lifting, repair,
and storage services compared to 2023. The Company's efforts to utilize Nam Hoa 5
Yard without securing new customers forced it to redistribute customers from Nam
Hoa 2 to Nam Hoa 5. However, this relocation resulted in customer losses, as Nam
Hoa 5's less favorable location and distance from the city center led customers to
switch to competitors' yards. To address this situation, the Company has strengthened
market expansion efforts and customer relations, actively seeking clients such as
domestic shipping lines, shipping agents, and container trading companies to increase
volume and enhance yard services. In 2024, the Company managed to attract
containers from several clients to the yard; however, this was insufficient to
compensate for the shortfall in volume, and the yard’s operations remained inefficient.
Additionally, the Company was unable to secure a long-term lease agreement for Nam
Hoa 2 Yard and could only sign annual contracts, resulting in low operational stability.

+ For Nam Hoa 3 and Nam Hoa 5 Yards, the Company maintained business
cooperation with traditional customers in the early months of 2024. However, starting
from mid-March 2024, a dispute arose between the yard lessor (Long Binh Investment
Service Trading Company Limited) and other land users, which affected the yard
operations of customers. The dispute at Nam Hoa 3 Yard persisted for an extended
period. Despite the Company’s strong coordination efforts with the relevant parties to
resolve the issue and its formal request for support from the authorities, no resolution
was achieved. The Company has liquidated the Business Cooperation Contract with
the customer and terminated the Yard Lease Agreement with the lessor. For Nam Hoa
5 Yard, its remote location from container operation centers has made marketing
efforts and customer acquisition for yard services extremely challenging. In the early
months of 2024, the Company implemented various customer support measures,
initially accepting a balance between revenue and expenses to attract containers to the
yard, At the same time, the Company proposed that the Parent Company and member
enterprises within the group support the Company by utilizing services at Nam Hoa 5
Yard. However, the volume remained very limited, and the yard's operations were still
ineffective. From mid-May 2024, certain individuals claiming to be creditors of the
lessor (Long Binh Investment Service Trading Company Limited.) obstructed the



Company's yard operations. Additionally, the yard surface quality did not meet
operational requirements. Therefore, from the end of June 2024, the Company
relocated all containers from Nam Hoa 5 Yard to Nam Hoa 2 Yard for operations and
proceeded with the necessary procedures to return the yard to the lessor. Currently, the
Company has engaged a legal consulting firm to assist in resolving procedures with
Long Binh Company, including debt reconciliation and the termination of lease
contracts for Nam Hoa 3 and Nam Hoa 5 yards.

Thus, although the Company increased revenue from business cooperation in
operating Nam Hoa 1 Yard and ICD Phuoc Long in 2024, the inefficiency of Nam Hoa
2 and Nam Hoa 5 Yards (with losses of VND 1,839 million and VND 1,333 million,
respectively) and the termination of business cooperation at Nam Hoa 3 Yard led to a
decline in revenue and profit from warehousing operations. The warehousing
operation results in Ho Chi Minh City Branch for 2024 were as follows: revenue
reached VND 41,106 million (90% of 2023 and 73% of the 2024 plan), while
operating profit was VND 17,893 million (88% of 2023 and 101% of the 2024 plan).

- At the Hanoi Branch: since the forklifts were liquidated at the end of 2023, the
Gia Lam warehouse operations in 2024 were limited to warehouse and yard leasing.
The Company actively sought tenants for the remaining vacant space and signed
contract addendums with all existing tenants to increase warehouse and yard rental
rates by 15% starting from July 1, 2024. In 2024, this activity at the Hanoi Branch
generated revenue of VND 4,978 million (117% of 2023 and 117% of the 2024 plan),
with an operating profit of VND 2,169 million (135% of 2023 and 91% of the 2024
plan).

1.3.2 Logistics Services:

The Company's logistics activities in 2024 have seen positive transformations
and significant improvements compared to 2023. In addition to maintaining freight
forwarding, transportation, and customs clearance services for its traditional
customers, the Company has actively sought new clients. It successfully signed a
contract to provide domestic and international freight agency services (including air,
sea, road, and rail transport) and expanded logistics services related to transport
operations, such as warehousing, customs declaration, and inspection for RQ
Technology Electronics Viet Nam Company Limited. The contract has been
implemented since May 2024. Furthermore, to execute the plan for providing services
to its parent company, VIMC Lines, in 2025, the Company began preparations in
December 2024, focusing on areas such as personnel, business processes, vehicles, and
modern information technology systems to support fleet management and operations.

The Company's logistics services in 2024 achieved a revenue of VND 21,150
million (136% compared to 2023, 66% of the 2024 target) and a profit of VND 752
million (34% of the 2024 target). In contrast, this segment recorded a loss of VND 515
million in 2023.



1.3.3 Fleet Transportation Services:

The Company's fleet transportation operations remained stable and efficient in
2024, successfully utilizing all 10 vehicles. In addition to maintaining services for key
clients such as Toyota, Nitori, and Canon, the Company actively sought new
customers and maximized backhaul cargo to enhance operational efficiency. Providing
services to large customers helped strengthen the Company's transportation business
brand. However, transportation volumes remained dependent on market demand and
production output from manufacturers. In 2024, fleet transportation revenue reached
VND 12,294 million (334% of 2023, 102% of the 2024 plan), with a profit of VND
728 million (67% of the 2024 plan, compared to a loss of VND 432 million in 2023).

1.3.4 Container Leasing Services:

The Company maintained stable service for its traditional customers while
expanding its client base by securing new domestic shipping lines and businesses
engaged in container trading and leasing. In 2024, revenue from the container leasing
service reached VND 15,585 million (98% of 2023 and 130% of the 2024 plan), with a
profit of VND 1,198 million (108% of 2023 and 100% of the 2024 plan).

1.3.5 Fuel Supply Service:

The fuel business operations were conducted in the Hai Phong area and at the
Ba Ria - Vung Tau (BRVT) Branch, with the BRVT Branch accounting for the
majority of the Company's fuel trading activities.

- At the BRVT Branch, fuel supply operations in 2024 were significantly more
efficient compared to 2023. The total fuel supply reached 5.24 million liters.
Marketing and customer care efforts have been strengthened, enabling the Company to
not only maintain and increase volume with major existing customers but also secure
contracts and implement service provision for several new customers, including large
clients such as: Binh Duong Multimodal Transport, Saigon Port, SSIT Port.
Additionally, the Company has actively conducted market research to monitor price
fluctuations and develop appropriate buying and selling strategies to enhance
operational efficiency.

- In Hai Phong: After restoring this activity at the end of 2023, in the early
months of 2024, the Company continued to provide internal fuel supply for its
transport fleet and forklifts, while being cautious in seeking new customers to ensure
effective debt collection. In addition to internal fuel supply, the Company signed
contracts and provided services to several units to increase revenue and profit for the
Company.

The results of fuel supply activities in 2024 are as follows: revenue reached
VND 102,713 million (157% of 2023, 133% of the 2024 plan), and profit amounted to
VND 2,850 million (157% of 2023, 94% of the 2024 plan).

1.4. Causes and factors affecting business performance
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1.4.1 Objective causes

- The Company's warehouses in the North are located far from the Dinh Vii port
center, making it nearly impossible to compete with other enterprises. In Ho Chi Minh
City, the Company's depots are also situated far from the port center, with
deteriorating infrastructure and equipment. Additionally, the land areas lack proper
legal documentation, are leased on a short-term annual basis, and fall within planned
development zones, significantly affecting investment, maintenance, and repairs. This
has led to reduced competitiveness and considerable difficulties in customer retention
and development.

- Global oil prices have been highly volatile due to the ongoing conflict
between Russia and Ukraine, conflicts among countries in the Middle East, and
tensions in the Red Sea, all of which have impacted fuel supply operations.

- The container shortage has severely reduced leasing volumes at the
Company's yards, leading to inefficient business operations at Nam Hoa 2 yard.
Additionally, Nam Hoa 5 yard is located too far from container operation centers,
making marketing and customer acquisition for yard services extremely challenging.
Furthermore, disputes have arisen between the land lessors of Nam Hoa 3 and Nam
Hoa 5 yards and their creditors, negatively impacting business operations at both
locations. As a result, the Company had to cease operations at Nam Hoa 3 and Nam
Hoa 5 yards.

- The container shortage has also impacted the Company's container leasing
services, as it has been unable to secure container supplies to meet customers'
increased rental demands.

- The increase in CY-CY freight rates by domestic shipping lines in 2024 for
the Hai Phong — Ho Chi Minh City route has affected customers' transportation plans
and the Company's logistics services.

- The 30% reduction in land tax for 2024 in Ho Chi Minh City has also
contributed to improving the Company's efficiency.

1.4.2 Subjective causes

- Warehouse Operations: The Company continues to maintain service quality,
particularly in container repair services. Skilled labor teams ensure continuous repair
operations, meeting customer demands, which has led leasing companies to trust and
prioritize the Company's yards over others in the same area. Additionally, the
Company has secured partnerships with domestic shipping lines, shipping agents, and
container trading companies to bring containers into its yards for operation. At the
same time, it has developed several services for refrigerated containers. The increased
revenue from business cooperation in operating Nam Hoa 1 yard and ICD Phude Long
has further enhanced the Company's business performance.



- The development of logistics services, which aligns with the Company's
strategic direction, has contributed to increased revenue and profit.

- Although 80% of Vimadeco's trailer fleet has low payload capacity and does
not fully meet current market demands, the Company has identified suitable cargo
sources and restructured its entire fleet operations, leading to improved efficiency.

- Focusing on market research and analysis to develop appropriate solutions,
while enhancing customer care and expanding the customer base, has helped increase
fuel sales volume and improve business efficiency.

- The liquidation of certain fully depreciated fixed assets that are no longer in
use has helped reduce maintenance costs and increase the Company's profitability.

- Successfully transferred the Company's entire investment in Seagull Maritime
Services Joint Stock Company.

1.5. Achieved Results

- In addition to providing services for leasing companies and infrastructure
rental, in 2024, the Company expanded its customer base in yard operations, including
domestic shipping lines, shipping agents, and container trading companies. It also
developed several services for refrigerated containers.

- Increased revenue from business cooperation in operating Nam Hoa 1 yard
and ICD Phuoc Long, along with higher warehouse rental rates at Nam Hoa 1.

- For fuel supply operations: Maintained service quality and increased sales
volume for existing customers, acquired new potential customers, and closely
monitored market trends to implement appropriate buying and selling strategies,
enhancing business efficiency.

- Successfully restructured the entire fleet operations, leading to efficient
transportation activities in 2024, ensuring vehicle readiness to provide services for the
parent company in 2025.

- Developed logistics operations as part of the Company’s strategic direction.
In 2024, in addition to maintaining existing customers, the Company intensified
market research and logistics development, focusing on target customers such as
industrial zones and FDI enterprises. As a result, it successfully secured new
customers for its logistics services and began service deployment, contributing to the
recovery of logistics operations.

- Successfully liquidated fully depreciated vehicles and equipment with high
maintenance costs that were no longer in use;

- Successfully identified partners for real estate project collaborations in Ho Chi
Minh City;



- Successfully identified a joint venture partner to invest in the Yen So Inland
Waterway Port and Logistics Yard project in Yen So Ward, Hoang Mai District,
Hanoi;

- Successfully restructured human resources to align with the actual situation,
reducing costs and improving business efficiency;

- Completed and implemented the 3Ps salary regulation, ensuring fairness and
attracting high-quality human resources;

- Implemented a warehouse management and operation software system,
reducing processing time, enhancing service quality, and improving management
efficiency;

- Strengthened cost reduction across the Company and prioritized debt
collection efforts to prevent capital misappropriation.

2. Implementation of Investment in Equipment Procurement, Project
Execution, and Management of Real Estate Assets

2.1. Investment Categories:

The approved investment plan for 2024 was VND 16.405 billion. During the
year, the Company added two additional projects. Installation of the Fire Protection
System at Nam Hoa 1 Warehouse — Ho Chi Minh City, as required by the Ho Chi
Minh City Customs Department, with an estimated cost of VND 660 million and
Renovation and Upgrade of the Gia Lam Warehouse Office, with an estimated cost of
VND 350 million. Thus, after these additions, the total investment plan for 2024
increased to VND 17.415 billion.

The Company has implemented the following projects:

- Business cooperation and investment in three projects in Ho Chi Minh City:
Planned capital of VND 500 million, with VND 136 million disbursed for legal
consulting and valuation contracts;

- Nam Hoa 5 Depot Project: Planned capital of VND 7.4 billion, with VND
293.7 million disbursed for consulting contracts. However, due to disputes over
outstanding debts between the yard contractor and the land lessor, along with ground
subsidence issues arising from poor construction quality since May 2024, the
Company ceased yard operations on June 30, 2024, and halted further investment in
the project.

- Installation of the Fire Protection System at Nam Hoa 1 Warehouse — Ho Chi
Minh City: Planned capital of VND 660 million, successfully completed with an actual
expenditure of VND 527 million.

Unimplemented Projects: Research on ICD/Depot investment in Hai Phong, Ho
Chi Minh City, Can Tho, Dong Nai, Binh Duong, and neighboring provinces,
Research on ICD/Inland Waterway Port investment in Bac Giang, Hanoi, and Ha Nam
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to establish a two-way transport route to Hai Phong, Research on warehouse
construction investment in Hai Phong, Investment in container-handling forklifts,
Investment in upgrading the electrical system at Dong Hai yard, Hai Phong. The
unimplemented projects were primarily due to the lack of suitable land for investment
research. Additionally, the discontinuation of the Nam Hoa 5 Depot Project led to the
decision not to invest in container-handling forklifts. Furthermore, the Company has
not yet secured a partner for warehouse investment at Dong Hai yard or for upgrading
its electrical system.

2.2. Infrastructure Repairs, IT System Upgrades, and Digital
Transformation:

- The 2024 infrastructure maintenance and repair plan was VND 2.32 billion.
The Company has completed the repair of internal roads at Chua V€& yard and both
internal roads and yard surfaces at Pong Hai yard, with an actual expenditure of VND
536 million. Unimplemented projects include maintenance and repairs of facilities in
Ho Chi Minh City, office buildings in Hai Phong and Ho Chi Minh City, and the
remaining budget for yard maintenance in Hai Phong has not yet been fully utilized.

- The IT system upgrade and digital transformation plan had a budget of VND
200 million. The Company has implemented management and operation software for
container yards in Hai Phong and Ho Chi Minh City, with an actual expenditure of
VND 150 million.

2.3. Implementation of Projects and Management of Real Estate Assets

To develop projects in Ho Chi Minh City, in 2024, the Company formulated
and approved a plan to search for and select investment and business cooperation
partners. A public announcement for partner selection was posted on the Company's
website and various media channels. As a result, the Company selected City Garden
Joint Stock Company as its partner for project development. On October 10, 2024,
both parties signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) for cooperation, based on
which they will develop specific plans and enter into cooperation agreements for each
project.

The land at 41 Nguyén Vin Linh, Hanoi, and ICD Phuoc Long is currently
being arranged in accordance with Decree No. 167/2017/ND-CP dated December 31,
2017, of the Government. The Company is awaiting feedback from the relevant
authorities.

The Company is actively working on completing the legal documentation for its
headquarters land at 11 Vo Thi Sau, Hai Phong.

2.4 . Asset Liquidation Status

Based on the condition of fixed assets, in 2023, the Company compiled a list of
fully depreciated assets that no longer met technical standards or were inefficient for
operation, which was approved by the Board of Directors. In 2024, the Company
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carried out the liquidation process in accordance with the required procedures through
public auction. As a result, the Company successfully completed the asset liquidation,
generating VND 1.68 billion, which was VND 238 million higher than the appraised

value.

PART TWO
BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2025

1. General Objectives

To ensure the successful achievement of the 2025 business plan targets, from
the beginning of the year, based on available resources and the operational strategy of
each unit, the General Director has assigned tasks to the Company's Branches and the
Logistics Operations & Business Department. In addition to ensuring profitability in
infrastructure leasing services, all other services must at least achieve cost-revenue
balance, preventing any losses, and gradually moving towards profitability.
Furthermore, in the upcoming period, the Company will focus on strengthening its
connection with the parent company, VIMC Lines, and maximizing resources to take
over services from the parent company according to the planned roadmap. Initially, the
Company will provide trucking, forwarding, and customs clearance services.

2. 2025 Business Plan
2.1. Business Performance Indicators

Unit: million VND

Actual Comparison
No. Indicators Performance in | Plan for 2025
2024

@) &) (€) “4) (4)(3)

1 Revenue 226,612 235,000 104%

2 Expenses 207,495 219,000 106%

3 Profit Before Tax 19,159 16,000 84%

4 Ebitda 22,750 19,560 86%

5 Dividend Payout 9% 9% 100%

2.2. Labor and salary indicators

No. Indicators Actual Plan for 2025 | Comparison
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Performance
in 2024
@) 2) A3) “4) “)/3)
p | Average number of 116.6 111.88 96%
employees
1 | Managers 1.0 1.625 163%
2 | Employee 115.6 110.25 95%
II | Salary Fund 22,756.2 26,863.9 118%
1 | Managers
Salary Fund (Million o
1.1 VND) 584.6 931.2 159%
Average Salary (Million o
1.2 VND/month/person) 48.719 45.480 93%
2 | Employee
Salary Fund (Million o
2.1 YND) 22,171.6 25,932.7 117%
Average Salary (Million
2.2 VND/month/person) 15.983 18.668

2.3. Investment, Construction, and Equipment Procurement Plan
2.3.1 Investment Categories:
The total investment plan for the year 2025 is VND 12.000 million:

- Business cooperation and investment cooperation for two projects: the
Phuoc Long A Apartment Complex and the project at ICD Phuoc Long in Ho Chi
Minh City.

Implementation budget: The capital plan for 2025 is VND 300 million to pay
for service contracts and legal consulting for the investment cooperation and business
cooperation process.

The Phuoc Long A Apartment Complex, Phuoc Binh Housing Project, and the
project at ICD Phuéc Long are facing difficulties with legal procedures and are
currently at an impasse, facing the risk of being revoked at any time with very low
compensation. Therefore, it is essential to carry out business cooperation and
investment cooperation so that the company can develop these projects and achieve
effective results. In 2024, Vimadeco has sought and chosen a partner, City Garden
Joint Stock Company, which has sufficient capacity, experience, and is currently
developing a plan to advance the projects, recover investment capital, and realize the
advantages of land use rights and assets on the land at these projects.
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- Research on investment in ICD/inland waterway port in Bac Giang, Hanoi,
and neighboring provinces, creating a two-way transport route to Hai Phong:

The estimated budget for 2025 is VND 200 million to carry out consulting
services related to investment capital contribution and the initial land procedures.

Maritime services are an important sector, closely integrated with the maritime
transport and seaport service groups. They play a supporting role to enhance the
operational capacity of these two business areas, coordinating to provide a complete
logistics service chain for customers and increasing market competitiveness.
Following the direction of the parent company, Vimadeco will collaborate with units
within VIMC Lines to form a service chain. Vimadeco can offer services such as
customer search, cargo handling, packaging, customs procedures, warehousing, and
transportation of goods from customer warehouses to VIMC Dinh Vu Port and vice
versa. Vimadeco is currently conducting research and seeking investment to develop
the infrastructure system at cargo consolidation points (ICD), setting up transport
routes, with a focus on inland waterway transport (inland ports, water transport
vehicles, etc.), to create a transport route between Hanoi, Bac Giang - Hai Phong.

Currently, Vimadeco is forming a joint venture with Lien A Investment and
Development Joint Stock Company and Vietnam Seaport Investment Joint Stock
Company to submit a proposal to the relevant authorities for approval to be the project
developer for the Inland Waterway Port and Yen So Logistics Warehouse project or
another project.

The projected budget for the plan year will be used for research, consulting, and
fulfilling initial obligations with the government or land-using partners when the
company identifies suitable land or receives approval from the relevant authorities to
become the project developer for the Yen So project.

- Research on investment for one yard in the Tan Thuan area, District 7, and
one yard in the Hiep Phuoc area, Ho Chi Minh City:

The estimated budget for 2025 is VND 300 million.

With the orientation of collaboration and cargo exploitation for VIMC Lines,
Vimadeco will seek to lease or lease and invest in upgrading a 2-hectare container yard
in the Tan Thuan area, District 7, Ho Chi Minh City, to handle domestic containers
and container leasing.

At the same time, Vimadeco will consider leasing and investing in a container
yard in the Hiep Phuoc area to handle cargo transferred by shipping lines from Cai
Mep Port for operations at Hiep Phuoc Port.

The projected budget for the plan year will be used for research, consulting, and
fulfilling initial obligations with the government or land-using partners when the
company identifies suitable land.

- Research on investment for one warehouse and yard in the Vinh Phuc area:
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The estimated budget for 2025 is VND 200 million.

In the Vinh Phuc area, the company is currently providing services to several
long-term, large clients, including Toyota, Canon, and Nitori. Additionally, the
surrounding area hosts businesses within the transportation group for Honda Vietnam.
The investment in a consolidation yard for cargo handling and storage is highly
necessary to improve the company’s transportation efficiency and provide services to
other clients.

The projected budget for the plan year will be used for research, consulting, and
fulfilling initial obligations with the government or land-using partners when the
company identifies suitable land.

- Research on investment for building a warehouse in Hai Phong:
The estimated budget for 2025 is VND 200 million.

Container yards in Hai Phong have gradually lost their competitive advantage
as seaports have moved further out to sea (e.g., Dinh Vu, Cat Hai...). Vimadeco is
currently involved in container leasing, transportation services, and infrastructure
leasing, but with low efficiency. To enhance land usage efficiency, Vimadeco is
researching and seeking sources of goods or partners with goods to invest in or
cooperate on a warehouse project at Dong Hai Container Yard (with land use rights
until 2048). Initially, Vimadeco plans to invest in or cooperate on a modern warehouse
of approximately 5,000m? investing in equipment and staff to ensure effective
operations, create new services, and develop stable and long-term growth.

The projected budget for the plan year will be used for research and consulting
purposes.

- Investment in equipment and vehicles
Investment in 10 container prime movers:
The estimated budget is VND 10 billion

The company currently has 10 container trucks, including 2 single-axle trucks
manufactured in 2006, which have limited transport capacity, and 3 Howo trucks
manufactured in 2014, which consume a large amount of fuel, reducing operational
efficiency. With the current fleet, the company is unable to meet customer demands
and has to call external vehicles, lacking flexibility. To ensure operational
requirements, improve service quality, and expand the fleet's scale and quality, the
company needs to add 10 container trucks for operations.

With the current financial resources, the company will calculate and choose
appropriate investments based on its capabilities and needs, ensuring investment
efficiency.

- Investment in IT systems and digital transformation:

The estimated budget is VND 800 million
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To meet the trend of digital transformation and enhance management
efficiency, operational control, business activities, and labor productivity, Vimadeco
will continue to invest in and upgrade its IT systems and digital transformation to align
with these goals.

2.3.2 The maintenance and repair plan for 2024:

Every year, the company must maintain and repair the infrastructure system and
container yards. These costs are accounted for as part of the annual production and
business expenses. In 2025, the estimated cost for these activities is VND 1.4 billion,
which includes:

- Maintenance of container yards in Hai Phong: VND 1 billion;

+ The low-voltage electrical system at the container yards is not properly
planned, with tangled wiring that is not securely positioned. Many sections are
submerged in water, and underground wiring does not meet technical standards. There
have been instances of short circuits and fires, posing safety risks and potential hazards
to the system, personnel, and equipment on the yard. The company needs to conduct a
re-survey of the system, redesign, and reconstruct it to ensure operational safety and
efficiency.

+ The drainage system around the yard is small in size (30cm wide, 60cm deep)
and lacks sufficient capacity to handle water runoff. As a result, during heavy rainfall,
the yard becomes flooded, with water levels rising by 20 to 30 cm in certain areas. The
flooding causes significant damage to the yard's surface structure, requiring the
company to conduct annual maintenance and repairs.

- Maintenance and repair of the Hai Phong office building: VND 200 million.
The office building, which was constructed a long time ago (during the French
colonial period), is now old and requires maintenance and repairs to meet usage
requirements.

- Maintenance and repair of the Gia Lam warehouse: VND 200 million. The
embankment and fence of the Gia Lam warehouse have a section that is tilting and at
risk of collapsing. The Hanoi branch will need to carry out repairs to address this issue
and prevent any impact on the yard's structure. Additionally, after the government
reclaimed part of the land, the drainage system is no longer functioning properly,
causing water to accumulate in some areas. Improvements and renovations are
necessary to resolve this issue.

2.4. The plan for implementing real estate projects and handling land and
property assets

Business cooperation and investment cooperation for real estate projects in Ho
Chi Minh City:



In 2025, the company will collaborate with its chosen partner, City Garden
Joint Stock Company, to develop projects, recover investment capital, and realize the
advantages of land use rights and assets on the land at these projects.

Complete the legal documentation for the land plot at 11 Vo Thi Sau, Hai
Phong

The company is actively coordinating with the relevant government authorities
to complete the legal documentation and land use rights certification. Once the
documentation is finalized, the company will consider investing in an office building
to enhance utilization efficiency (including investment solutions and office leasing).

3. The solutions for implementation

3.1.Solutions to complete the business production plan

3.1.1 Solutions for the market, customers, and business production
a) Product Diversification

- Analysis of the business environment, identifying market trends and customer
needs to propose the most suitable solutions aligned with the company's strengths.

- Analyze the company's strengths and weaknesses, identify the factors that help
the company compete with its competitors, and the aspects that need improvement.

- Develop new services, seek and selectively invest in services with growth
potential.

- Leverage existing resource advantages to build exclusive service criteria,
creating differentiation from competitors through quality, convenience, or added value.

b) Pricing Policy

- Customer Segmentation, Identifying Traditional and Potential Customer Groups, and

Proposing Suitable Pricing Mechanisms and Discounts.

- Build a flexible pricing model, adjust prices according to market demand,
reduce prices for certain stages while ensuring overall profitability across the service
chain.

- Implement promotional programs, invest in value-added services to enhance
customer satisfaction and maintain customer loyalty.

¢) Market Expansion Promotion Strategy

- Analyze the company's position, evaluate its presence in different regions, and
identify the development direction.

- Enhance connections with member units within the VIMC Lines system and
external partners to optimize the logistics service ecosystem and increase
competitiveness.



- Strengthen marketing and build the company’s image, focusing on advertising,
communication activities, and enhancing reputation in the market.

- Make customers the center of focus, regularly/periodically collect and analyze
customer feedback, and build a feedback system to improve service quality.

d) Regarding the development of business operations
* For the Vung Tau Branch

- Continue to maintain fuel business operations, as it is the only field of the
branch and a strength that needs to be preserved.

- Enhance business performance by optimizing processes, controlling costs,
seeking additional market expansion opportunities, and strengthening debt collection
efforts to ensure cash flow for business operations.

* For the Hanoi Branch

- Continue to maintain operations at Gia Lam yard, ensuring efficient
operations;

- Coordinate with the Ho Chi Minh City branch and the Hai Phong area in
operating the door-to-door service supply chain for VIMC Lines;

- Develop logistics services, including:
+ Customs declaration, assisting customers with import and export procedures.

+ Freight forwarding, researching optimization solutions for transportation
methods to reduce costs and enhance competitiveness.

* Ho Chi Minh City Branch

- Continue to maintain and improve the effectiveness of warehouse operations,
ensuring a stable revenue source.

- Focus on strengthening logistics services, serving as a key link in the southern
region to support the company's door-to-door supply chain.

* Hai Phong Area

- Continue maintaining and improving the efficiency of yard operations,
optimizing land use; Continue leasing infrastructure at Vimadeco Chua Ve yard.

- Replan the Dong Hai yard towards:

+ Replan the Dong Hai yard by allocating a portion for centralized leasing,
targeting large customers to optimize land utilization and reduce the area designated
for common pathways.

+ A portion of the yard will be self-operated by the company, focusing on
providing additional value-added services to customers to enhance competitiveness
against entities without existing infrastructure.



+ Relocate the oil depot operations and transport fleet from Vimadeco Dong
Hai yard to Vimadeco Chua Ve yard to optimize resources.

- Act as the central hub for coordinating door-to-door services for VIMC Lines
in the Northern region, providing maximum support for transportation and logistics
operations.

- Maintain and expand fuel supply services.
- Provide cleaning and repair services for VIMC Dinh Vu Port.
3.1.2 Corporate Governance and Innovation Solutions

Since August 2024, Vietnam Maritime Corporation has officially transferred its
entire 51% stake in the Company to VIMC Container Transport Joint Stock Company
(VIMC Lines), making the Company a subsidiary of VIMC Lines. As a result, the
Company has become part of VIMC Lines' ecosystem, which encompasses seaports,
maritime transportation, and logistics services. This strategic integration provides the
Company with a significant advantage in developing logistics services within VIMC
Lines' ecosystem.

Therefore, from this point forward, the Company must strategically select and
focus on developing its core and sustainable business activities across its short-term,
mid-term, and long-term plans.

Given the current situation, the Company must urgently review its resources,
enhance workforce quality, upgrade equipment, facilities, and infrastructure, and
implement the restructuring of its service offerings and business scale. This is a
strategic objective, especially as certain existing and future services may no longer
have room for growth.

Based on this foundation, the Company aims to become a key link in VIMC
Lines' ecosystem. Leveraging its strong infrastructure and extensive experience in yard
operations, the Company strives to provide comprehensive logistics service chains,
enhance customer experience, and expand its market share in Vietnam.

With technology as the core driver of development, the Company focuses on
building modern logistics solutions tailored to supply chain systems, optimizing
management and operations. At the same time, the Company strengthens customer
connectivity, ensures superior service quality, enhances core value, and progressively
realizes its strategic vision.

In the immediate future, the Company must gradually take over a portion of
services, progressing toward full integration of road transportation and the logistics
service chain of VIMC Lines. Additionally, the Company should strengthen market
development efforts and progressively provide forwarding services for VIMC Lines.

3.1.3 Financial and Investment Solutions



- Explore solutions to secure long-term loans with favorable interest rates for
investment, equipment upgrades, and other projects within the strategic expansion of
maritime logistics services.

- Strengthen debt collection efforts and minimize bad debts to ensure a healthy
cash flow for business operations.

- Effectively manage cash flow by balancing receivables and payables, avoiding
capital stagnation, and minimizing capital appropriation in business operations.

- Carefully evaluate and select investment options to preserve capital, maximize
the Company's benefits, and avoid fragmented or non-core investments misaligned
with the Company's business activities.

- Select the appropriate timing to divest short-term and long-term investments,
focusing resources on core business operations.

- Allocate and arrange financial resources appropriately to align with
investment activities.

3.1.4 Human Resource Solutions

a. Develop workforce demand planning

- Identify workforce needs appropriately, ensuring professional quality, long-
term commitment, and dedication to the Company. Establish a competent,
experienced, and highly specialized human resource structure.

- Orient the development of a dedicated and committed workforce with a strong
sense of contribution to the organization.

b. Develop policies to attract talent

- Implement a scientific and transparent recruitment process; recruitment
assessments must ensure objectivity, accurately evaluate capabilities, and align with
the Company's actual needs.

- Develop a fair and appropriate salary and bonus policy based on the value and
contributions employees bring to the Company. This will help attract and retain skilled
and experienced talent, encourage dedication, and optimize the potential of employees.

- Develop training, development programs, salary, and allowances for the
workforce within the talent development program in alignment with VIMC's direction.
Plan for a succession team and establish incentive mechanisms to retain and attract high-
quality personnel. Implement regular staff planning to ensure proper planning and
direction for the organizational structure.

c. Develop a training policy

- Develop a training and development policy that fosters a culture of continuous
learning, innovation, and professional expertise updates to ensure the workforce keeps
pace with current trends. Ensure the versatility of employees' professional skills to
facilitate labor management and deployment within the company.



- Always implement policies for the training and development of a succession
workforce for specialized, hard-to-recruit positions, ensuring the availability of skilled
personnel to support the company's production and business activities.

- Enhance internal training efforts, focusing on specialized knowledge, skills,
and operational processes to improve employee performance and efficiency.

d. Create a civilized and modern working environment

- Build a healthy working environment, foster awareness and mindset, so that
employees view the company as their second home.

- Foster strong colleague relationships, enhance team spirit, and improve
collaboration in the workplace.

- Enhance corporate community activities, fostering a spirit of sharing and unity
within the company.

- Promote the role of organizations within the company, such as the Party
organization and the Trade Union, to strengthen internal solidarity and contribute to the
company’s development.

3.1.5 Technology and Technical Solutions

- Regarding solutions for internal data storage and preservation, the Company
has invested in the installation of a centralized NAS storage system. This system
provides branches and headquarters with a shared space for data storage, preventing
data loss on individual computers.

- In early 2025, the Company successfully signed a contract with CloudGo to
use software for managing marketing campaigns and customer care. Additionally, the
software also supports tracking and handling customer requests, contracts, and events
related to each customer.

- For fleet management, the Company is in the process of evaluating a software
package from a provider to apply in its operational activities. The application includes
functions such as managing individual trips, providing alerts for delays compared to
the schedule, and assisting drivers in selecting routes based on current traffic
conditions.

3.2. Risk Management Solutions

- Train and enhance professional skills in comprehensive risk management
across various areas such as finance and accounting, business, and human resources

- Support an integrated information technology system across the enterprise
within the Corporation, in order to create tools that aid in timely and more effective
risk control and management.

Respectfully report!
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Recipients: GENERAL DIRECTOR
- As above;

- BOD of the Company;

- Board of Supervisors of the Company;

- Save: General Aggregation Department

Pham Thanh Nhan

21



VIETNAM MARITIME THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
DEVELOPMENT Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Hai Phong, March ..., 2025
No.: ..../TTr- PTHH

PROPOSAL
Regarding the approval of the audited financial statements for the year 2024

To: The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2025

Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company

- Pursuant to the current Charter of the Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock
Companys;

- Pursuant to the consolidated financial statements of Vietnam Maritime
Development Joint Stock Company for the year 2024, audited by UHY Auditing And
Consulting Company Limited;

The Board of Directors of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company
respectfully submits to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2025 for approval
the consolidated financial statements of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock
Company for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024, audited by UHY Audit and
Consulting LLC (the financial statement is enclosed with this proposal).

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and

approval.
Respectfully.
Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
- Asabove; DIRECTORS
- Save: General Department; CHAIRMAN

Company Secretary; V03.

Le Duy Duong
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT JOIN STOCK COMPANY
11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward, Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

The Board of General Directors of Vietnam Maritime Development Join Stock Company (hereinafter
referred to as the “Company”) presents this report together with the Company’s audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

The members of the Board of Management and Board of General Directors of the Company who held
office during the year and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Board of Management

Mr. Le Duy Duong Chairman

Mr. Vu Chau Thanh Member

Mr. Dao Hong Chuong Member

Mr. Nguyen Chi Kien Member

Mr. Vu Viet Thang Member Appointed on 10 April 2024
Mr. Le Dong Member Resigned from 10 April 2024

Supervisory Board

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Hong

Dung Chief Supervisor ~ Appointed on 10 April 2024
Mrs. Duong Thi Hong

Hanh Chief Supervisor ~ Resigned from 10 April 2024
Mr. Pham Quoc Hung Member

Mrs. Do Lan Huong Member

Board of General Directors

Mr. Pham Thanh Nhan General Director Appointed on 01 November 2024
Mr. Phan Nhan Thao General Director Resigned from 01 November 2024

Head of Finance and Accounting Department

The Head of the Finance and Accounting Department of the Company is Mrs. Nguyen Thuy Van
EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of General Directors confirms that there have been no significant events occurring after the
balance sheet date which would require adjustments to or disclosures to be made in the financial
statements.

AUDITOR

The accompanying financial statements have been audited by UHY Auditing and Consulting
Company Limited.

BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of General Directors of the Company is responsible for preparing the financial statements
that give a true and fair view, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of 31
December 2024, as well as its results and cash flows for the fiscal year ending 31 December 2024, in
conformity with Vietnamese accounting standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting Regime, and
legal regulations related to the preparation and presentation of financial statements. In preparing these
financial statements, the Board of General Directors is required to:
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT JOIN STOCK COMPANY
11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward, Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY (CONT’D)

e Build and maintain internal controls as determined necessary by the Board of General Directors
and the Executive Board of the Corporation to ensure the preparation and presentation of financial
statements that reflect true and fair view;

e Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
e Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e State whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

e Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue in business;

e Prepare and present financial statements on the basis of compliance with Accounting Standards,
Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting Regime, and legal regulations related to the preparation and
presentation of financial statements.

The Board of General Directors confirms that the Company has complied with the above requirements
in preparing and presenting the Financial Statements.

The Board of General Directors of the Company is responsible for ensuring that the accounting records
are properly recorded to fairly reflect the financial position of the Company at any time and to ensure
that the Financial Statements comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate
Accounting System and related legal regulations on the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements. In addition, the Board of General Directors is also responsible for ensuring the safety of
the Company's assets and thus taking appropriate measures to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Board of General Directors confirms that the Company complies with Circular No. 96/2020/TT-
BTC dated 16 November 2020 by Ministry of Finance on disclosure of information on the stock
market; Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated 31 December 2020 by Government on detailing and
guiding the implementation of a number of article of the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 and
the Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated 31 December 2020 by the Ministry of Finance guiding
certain articles on corporate governance applicable to public companies.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS APPROVAL

The Board of General Directors approves the attached financial statements. The financial statements
accurately reflect the financial position of the Company as of 31 December 2024, as well as the results
of business operations and cash flows of the Company for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024, in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and
related legal regulations on the preparation and presentation of the financial statements.
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General Director
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UH AUDITING AND CONSULTING COMPANY LIMITED

No.: 86/2025/UHY-BCKT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Regarding the financial statements of Vietmam Maritime Development Join Stock Company
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

To: Shareholders, Board of Management and Board of General Directors
Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Vietnam Maritime Development Join

Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Company”), which were prepared on 18 February
2025 as set out on pages 6 to 48, including the Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2024, Income
Statement, Cash Flow Statement for the fiscal year ended on the same date and Notes to the financial
statements.

Responsibilities of the Board of General Directors

The Board of General Directors is responsible for preparing and presenting the financial statements
to provide a true and fair view in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese
Corporate Accounting System and related legal regulations on the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements and for such internal control as the Board of General Directors determines is
necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that are free from
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Responsibilities of the Auditors

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion. '

Opinion of auditors

In our opinion, the accompanied financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects,
of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and related legal regulations on the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements.

Head Office: 5th Floor, B2 Tower,

Roman Plaza, To Huu Street, Dai Mo Ward,

Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi, Vietnam. 4
Phone: 84 24 5678 3999

www,uhy.vn

_J An independent member of UHY International

Lou ||
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONT’D)

Emphasis of matters

As presented in Note 14 - Construction in progress, the Company is recording investment in
progress for the Bac Rach Biec - Phuoc Binh Project at 31/12/2024 with a value of VND 36.57
billion (at 31/12/2023 the value was VND 36.41 billion) and the Bac Rach Biec - Phuoc Long A
Project at 31/12/2024 with a value of VND 12.65 billion (at 31/12/2023 the value was VND 12.62
billion). These projects are being inspected by State management agencies regarding the
implementation of these projects, up to the time of preparing this report, there is still no final
conclusion on the inspection work. The Board of General Directors of the Company has conducted
an assessment and is fully confident that the projects can still proceed with implementation.

In Note 35.1, the Company has presented the potential liability payable to SACA Joint Stock
Company, but has not specifically determined the obligation to pay due to the disputed land area to
be transferred to SACA Joint Stock Company, which is in dispute with Vinh Loc Limited Liability

Company.

This emphasis of matter does not affect the audit opinion presented.

Le Quang Nghia Ngo Anh Dung

Deputy General Director Auditor

Auditor’s Practicing Certificate Auditor’s Practicing Certificate
No. 3660-2021-112-1 No. 5215-2021-112-1

For and on behalf of

UHY AUDITING AND CONSULTING COMPANY LIMITED
Ha Noi, 18 February 2025



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Form B0la-DN

VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT
JOIN STOCK COMPANY

11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward,

Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2024
ASSETS Code Note 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VYND VND
CURRENT ASSETS 100 132,559,761,033 120,791,097,592
Cash and cash equivalents 110 4 27,232,449,843 19,706,263,266
Cash 111 11,832,449,843 12,506,263,266
Cash equivalents 112 15,400,000,000 7,200,000,000
Short-term financial investments 120 5 59,820,000,000 54,080,000,000
Held to maturity investments 123 59,820,000,000 54,080,000,000
Short-term receivables 130 40,201,379,349 41,440,170,529
Short-term receivables from customers 131 6 40,913,756,311 38,097,537,553
Short-term advances to suppliers 132 7 3,840,975,818 4,690,411,418
Short-term intra-company receivables 133 - =
Other short-term receivables 136 8 3,374,831,357 2,949,635,726
Provision for short-term doubtful debts 137 9 (7,928,184,137) (4,297,414,168)
Inventories 140 10 3,044,847,019 2,174,419,138
Inventories 141 3,044,847,019 2,174,419,138
Other current assets 150 2,261,084,822 3,390,244,659
Short-term prepayment 151 13 1,233,084,433 755,093,329
Deductible VAT 152 957,662,891 1,295,567,458
Taxes and other receivables from the State 153 17 70,337,498 1,339,583,872
Budget
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 106,788,423,744 113,528,497,515
Long-term receivables 210 26,029,062,786 25,339,062,786
Long-term prepayment to suppliers 212 7 24.653,398,581 24,653,398,581
Other long-term receivables 216 8 1,375,664,205 685,664,205
Fixed assets 220 13,442,596,660 16,574,198,025
Tangible fixed assets 221 11 11,065,513,353 14,072,114,714
- Cost 222 116,574,035,262 119,460,609, 965
- Accumulated depreciation 223 (105,508,521,909) (105,388,495,251)
Intangible fixed assets 227 12 2,377,083,307 2,502,083,311
- Cost 228 3,200,000,000 3,200,000,000
- Accumulated amortization 229 (822,916,693) (697,916,689)
Non-current assets in progress 240 50,688,043,272 50,203,362,289
Construction in progress 242 14 50,688,043,272 50,203,362,289
Long-term financial investments 250 5 11,713,764,385 17,113,788,387
Investment in joint-ventures and associates 252 - 5,400,000,000
Investments in other entities 253 33,594,400,000 33,594,424,002
Provision for long-term financial investments 254 (21,880,635,615) (21,880,635,615)
Other non-current assets 260 4,914,956,641 4,298,086,028
Long-term prepayment 261 13 4,914,956,641 4,298,086,028
TOTAL ASSETS 270 239,348,184,777 234,319,595,107

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements 6



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Form B01a-DN

VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT
JOIN STOCK COMPANY

11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward,

Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

Accumulated retained earnings brought forward  421a

BALANCE SHEET (CONT’D)
As at 31 December 2024

EQUITY Code WNote 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND

LIABILITIES 300 87,701,361,914 83,733,199,539
Current liabilities 310 23,847,081,975 21,904,077,440
Short-term payables to suppliers 311 16 7,721,975,061 7.435,181,412
Taxes and other payables to the State budget 313 17 3,099,807,642 3,469,250,553
Payables to employees 314 4,335,080,360 3,548,497,737
Short-term accrued expenses 315 15 1,488,041,909 415,094,965
Short-term unearned revenue 318 19 2,268,129,059 2,521,884,144
Other short-term payables 319 18 4,475,963,834 4,185,167,096
Bonus and welfare fund 322 458,084,110 329,001,533
Non-current liabilities 330 63,854,279,939 61,829,122,099
Other long-term payables 337 18 63,854,279,939 61,829,122,099
OWNERS' EQUITY 400 20 151,646,822,863 150,586,395,568
Ownmers' equity : 410 151,646,822,863 150,586,395,568
Paid-in equity 411 90,000,000,000 90,000,000,000

- Ordinary shares with voting rights 411a 90,000,000,000 90,000,000,000
Share premium 412 20,000,000,000 20,000,000,000
Treasury shares 415 (20,000) (20,000)
Investment and development fund 418 26,272,308,883 21,919,639,250
Retained earnings 421 15,374,533,980 18,666,776,318

4,157,877,540

Retained earnings for the current year 421b 15,374,533,980 14,508,898,778
TOTAL RESOURCES 440 239,348,184,777 234,319,595,107
Hai Phong, 18 February 2025
, @b’ 5805 )
Preparer Head of Finance and € al Director

Accounting Department ) * ‘
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These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements 7



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Form B02a-DN

VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT
JOIN STOCK COMPANY

11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward,

Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

INCOME STATEMENT
For the financial year ended 31 December2024
Items Code Note Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Bevenus fivim. £ales dtgonds and 01 22  214,993,873,720 162,952,110,551
rendering of services
Revenue deductions 02 1,166,069,932 6,222,476
Netrevenus fropm sslesiofl goodsamd 10 213,827,803,788  162,945,888,075
rendering of services
Cost of goods sold and services rendered 11 23 187,085,523,827 137,695,035,398
fe;‘;s:n?’n';’i;; i?;‘;;’;‘es of goods and 20 26,742,279,961  25,250,852,677
Financial income 21 24 8,778,959,212 4,452,351,830
Financial expenses 22 25 286,414,035 (685,511,080)
In which: Interest expenses 23 - -
Selling expenses 25 26 785,772,557 721,614,437
General and administrative expenses 26 26 18,668,625,658 16,022,153,849
Net profit from operating activities 30 15,780,426,923 13,644,947,301
Other income 31 27 4,004,845,059 4,448,447,249
Other expenses 32 28 626,099,739 24,303,600
Other profit 40 3,378,745,320 4,424,143,649
Total net profit before tax 50 19,159,172,243 18,069,090,950
Current corporate income tax expenses 51 30 3,784,638,263 3,560,192,172
Profit after corporate income tax 60 15,374,533,980 14,508,898,778
Basic earnings per share 70 31 1,708 1,162
Diluted earnings per share 71 32 1,708 1,162

Preparer
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These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Form B03a-DN

VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT
JOIN STOCK COMPANY

11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward,

Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

CASH FLOWS STATEMENT
(Applying indirect method)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024
Year 2023

Items Code Note Year 2024

Cash flows from operating activities

VYND

VND

Profit before tax 1 19,159,172,243 18,069,090,950
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of fixed asets and 02 3,590,756,374 3,864,327,014
investment property
Provisions 03 3,630,769,969 (771,852,247)
Foreign exchange gains/ losses from the 04 69,309,516 855,527
revaluation of monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies
Gain from investing activities 05 (9,586,164,007) (4,189,567,262)
Operating profit before movements in 08 16,863,844,095 16,972,853,982
working capital
Increase, decrease in receivables 09 (2,058,161,619) (1,806,605,239)
Increase, decrease in inventories 10 (870,427,881) (1,330,586,029)
Increase, decrease in payables (excluding 11 5,518,753,317 (9,320,575,057)
interest payable, corporate income tax
payable)
Increase, decrease in prepaid expense 12 (1,094,861,717) 24,679,285
Corporate income tax paid 15 (4,560,192,172) (605,396,119)
Other cash outflow 17 (3,925,024,108)  (3,031,616,770)
Net cash flows from operating activities 20 9,873,929,915 902,754,053
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of fixed assets and other long- 21 (899,787,333) (441,353,355)
term assets
Proceeds from fixed assets and long-term 22 1,061,683,467 554,768,370
assets disposal
Cash outflow for lending, buying debt 23 (65,720,000,000) (81,990,000,000)
instruments of other companies
Cash recovered from lending, selling debt 24 59,980,000,000 86,200,000,000
instruments of other companies
Interest income, dividend and profit 27 2,439,828,465 4,354,769,390
received
Net cash from investing activities 30 8,472,724,599 8,678,184,405

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT
JOIN STOCK COMPANY

11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward,

Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Form B03a-DN

CASH FLOWS STATEMENT (CONT’D)
(Applying indirect method)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Items Code Note Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends or profits paid to owners 36 (10,749,013,260) (9,205,439,100)
(10,749,013,260) (9,205,439,100)
Net cash flows from financing activities 40
Net (increase) in cash and cash 7,597,641,254 375,499,358
equivalents 50
Cash and cash equivalents at the 19,706,263,266  19,340,742,106
beginning of the period 60 4
Impact of exchange rate fluctuation 61 (71,454,677) (9,978,198)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 27,232,449,843 19,706,263,266
the period 70 4
i, P_ftong, 18 February 2025
Preparer Head of Finance and 6 ‘3?0058 o

Accounting Department

“N )/ﬂ(_,q—'

Sai Thi Thom Nguyen Thuy Van

Pham Thanh Nhan

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements 10



VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JOIN STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward, Form B09-DN
Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

OPERATION CHARACTERISTICS OF THE COMPANY

STRUCTURE OF OWNERSHIP

Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company was established and operates under
Business Registration Certificate No. 0200580975 issued by the Department of Planning and
Investment of Hai Phong City for the first time on 09 March 2004, with the 16th amendment

made on 25 January 2025.

The Company’s head office is located at: 11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward, Ngo Quyen
District, Hai Phong City.

The Company's Charter capital is VND 90,000,000,000, actual contributed Charter capital by
31 December 2024 amounting to VND 90,000,000,000, equivalent to 9,000,000 shares with a

par value of VND 10,000 per share.

The number of employees of the Company as of 31 December 2024 is 112 employees (as of 01
January 2024, it was 123 employees).

BUSINESS FIELD

The Company’s business activities are trade and services.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

The principal business activities of the Company are:

- Trading in real estate, land use rights owned or leased;
Details: Warehouse, yard, office, house for rent.

- Other supporting service activities related to transportation;

Details: Shipping agency services; Agency services for sea transport; Shipping brokerage
services; Services of Logistics; Freight forwarding services; customs declaration, petroleum

trading; Container rental service.

- Retail sale of motor fuel in specialized stores;

- Storage warehouse;

- Transport of goods by road, inland waterway, coastal and oceanic.
NORMAL BUSINESS CYCLE

The Company’s normal production and business cycle is no more than 12 months.

11
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JOIN STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward, Form B09-DN
Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)
1. OPERATION CHARACTERISTICS OF THE COMPANY (CONT’D)
1.5 COMPANY’S STRUCTURE

The Company has the following affiliated units:

The subordinate units: Address Main business activities

1. Branch of Maritime Development Joint Ho Chi Minh Inland port operation; agency
Stock Company in Ho Chi Minh City City services; container operation;
warehouse operation

2. Branch of Maritime Development Joint Ba Ria — Vung Petroleum business
Stock Company in Ba Ria — Vung Tau Tau

3. Branch of Maritime Development Joint Ha Noi Transportation and inland port
Stock Company in Ha Noi operation business

4. Branch of Maritime Development Joint Quang Ninh Shipping agency, maritime
Stock Company in Quang Ninh transportation agency services,
logistics services

1.6 DECLARATION ON THE INFORMATION COMPARABILITY IN FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The comparative figures are the figures in the financial statements for the fiscal year ended 31
December 2023 of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company, which have been audited.

2, ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND REGIMES APPLIED

21 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND REGIMES APPLIED

The company applies Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Enterprise Accounting Regime
issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 by the Ministry of
Finance guiding the accounting regime for enterprises, and Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC dated
21 March 2016, by the Ministry of Finance amending and supplementing some provisions of
Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC.

2.2 ACCOUNTING PERIOD

The Company's fiscal year begins on 01 January and ends on 31 December of the calendar year.
These financial statements are prepared for the fiscal year ending 31 December 2024.

2.3 DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND
REGULATIONS

The financial statements of the Company are prepared and presented in compliance with the
requirements of Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System,
as well as relevant legal regulations related to the preparation and presentation of financial
statements.

12
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JOIN STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward, Form B09-DN
Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

3.

3.1

3.2

3.21

3.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are the important accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing these
Financial Statements:

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards
requires the Board of General Directors to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported data on liabilities, assets and presentation of potential liabilities and assets at the date
of preparation of the Financial Statements as well as reported figures on revenue and expenses
throughout the fiscal year. Actual business results may differ from estimates and assumptions.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

The exchange rate for converting transactions occurring during the period in foreign currency
is the actual transaction rate with the Bank the Company has transactions with at the time of
occurrence.

The exchange rate used for the translation of monetary items denominated in foreign currency
at the time of preparing the financial statements is the published exchange rate of the bank where
the Company holds the foreign currency account at the time of financial statement preparation.

In which:

- The exchange rate used for the translation of monetary items denominated in foreign
currency classified as assets is the buying rate at the bank where the Company holds the
foreign currency account at the time of financial statement preparation.

- The exchange rate used for the translation of monetary items denominated in foreign
currency classified as liabilities is the selling rate at the bank where the Company holds the
foreign currency account at the time of financial statement preparation.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly
liquid investments with an original maturity term of less than 3 months that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
Held-to-maturity investment

Held-to-maturity investments include investments that the Company has the intention and
ability to hold until maturity. The held-to-maturity investments are deposits at commercial
banks.

Held-to-maturity investments are recognized from the purchase date and initially measured at
the purchase price plus any costs related to the purchase transaction. Interest income from held-
to-maturity investments earned after the purchase date is recognized in the Income Statement
on an accrual basis. Interest earned before the Company holds the investments is deducted from
the principal at the time of purchase.

Held-to-maturity investments are measured at cost less the allowance for doubtful debts

When there is conclusive evidence that part or all of the investment may be unrecoverable and
the loss can be measured reliably, the loss is recognized in financial expenses during the year
and directly deducted from the investment value.

13
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JOIN STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward, Form B09-DN
Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

3.

34

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (CONT’D)
Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence but no control over
the financial and operating policies and is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture of the
Company. Significant refers to to the right to participate in decision-making on financial and
operational policies of the investee without exercising control or joint control over these
policies.

Investments in joint ventures, associates are initially recognized at cost, including the purchase
price or contributions of capital plus expenses directly attributable to investment. In the case of
non-monetary asset investments, the investment amount is recorded at the fair value of the non-
monetary asset at the time of occurrence.

Dividends and profits from previous periods before the investment was acquired are accounted
for as a reduction of the value of that investment. Dividends and profits from periods after the
investment is acquired are recognized as revenue. Dividends received in the form of shares are
only tracked for the additional number of shares received, with no recognition of the value of
the shares received or recognized at face value.

Provisions for losses on investments in joint ventures, associates are established at the time of
preparing the financial statements when investments in joint ventures, associates have decreased
in value compared to the original cost. The Company makes provisions as follows:

- For investments in joint ventures, associates with shares listed on the market or a reasonable,
fair value of the investment determined reliably, the provision is based on the market value
of the shares.

- For investments where a reasonable, fair value cannot be determined at the reporting date, a
provision is established at a level equal to the difference between the actual contributions of
the parties in the joint ventures, associates and the actual equity multiplied by the Company's
proportion of capital contribution compared to the total actual capital contributions of the
parties in the joint ventures, associates.

If the joint ventures associates are entities included in the consolidated financial statements, the
basis for determining the provision for losses is the consolidated financial statements.

Any increase or decrease in provisions for the diminution in value of financial investments is
recognized as a financial expense for the period.

Investment in capital instruments of other entities

Investment in capital instruments of other entities is capital contribution to other entities, but
the Company does not have the right to control or co-control and significant influence on the
investee.

Investment in capital instruments of other entities is initially recognized at cost, including the
purchase price or capital contributions plus costs directly attributable to investments. Dividends
and profits of periods before the investments are purchased are reduced against such
investments. Dividends and profits of periods after the investments are purchased are recognized
as revenue. Dividends received in the form of shares are monitored based on added shares rather
than recognized based on the value of shares received/ recorded at face value (except for state-
owned companies that comply with current provisions of law)...

Provision for losses of investments in capital instruments of other entities is made at the time of
preparing financial statements when the investments have decreased compared to the original
price; the Company makes provision as follows:

14




VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JOIN STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward, Form B09-DN
Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

3

34

3.5

3.6

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (CONT’D)

- For investments in listed shares or where the fair value can be measured reliably, provisions
are made based on the market value of the shares.

- For investments where the fair value cannot be measured reliably at the reporting date,
provisions are based on the losses of the investee, with the amount equal to the difference
between the paid-in capital of parties in other entities and the actual owner’s equity,
multiplied by the Company's proportion of capital contribution relative to the total paid-in
capital of the parties.

Any increase or decrease in provision for losses on investments in capital instruments of other
entities that must be made at the end of the financial year is recognized as financial expenses.

RECEIVABLES

Receivables are presented at their carrying value, net of any allowance for doubtful debs..

The classification of receivables as trade receivables and other receivables is conducted under
the following principle:

- Trade receivables reflect commercial receivables arising from sale transactions between
the Company and independent buyer.

- Other receivables reflect non-commercial receivables that are not related to sale
transactions.

Provision for doubtful debts is made for overdue debts as specified in the economic contracts,
contract commitments or debt commitments that have been repeatedly requested for payment
by the Company but not yet collected, the determination of overdue receivables is made based
on the due date of the principal payment in the initial sales contract, egardless of any debt
rescheduling between the parties. Allowance is also made for those that have not fallen due but
debtors are on the verge of bankruptcy or finalizing procedures for dissolution, missing or fled
and reversed when debts are recovered.

Any increase or decrease in the allowance for doubtful debts at the reporting date is recorded as
a general and administrative expense.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. The cost of tangible
fixed assets includes the purchase price and any directly attributable costs necessary to bring
the assets to their working condition and location for their intended use.

Expenditures incurred after the initial recognition are only capitalized as an increase in the
historical cost of fixed assets if it is certain that they will increase the future economic benefits
derived from the use of such assets. Costs that do not meet these conditions are recognized as
operating expenses during the year.

When fixed assets are sold or disposed of, their original cost and accumulated depreciation are
written off, and any gains or losses arising from the disposal are recognized as income or
expenses in the year.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives. The specific depreciation period is as follows:
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JOIN STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward, Form B09-DN
Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)
3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

3.6 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (CONT’D)

Type of assels Useful life(year)
- Buildings, structures 05 - 50 years
- Machinery, equipment 03 - 10 years
- Transportation, motor vehicles 06 - 10 years
- Office equipment 03 - 05 years
- Others 03 - 07 years

3.7 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Construction in progress includes fixed assets that are being purchased or constructed but are
not yet completed as of the end of the accounting period and are recognized at historical cost.
These costs include construction expenses, machinery and equipment installation costs, and
other directly attributable costs.

3.8 PREPAYMENTS

Prepayments expenses incurred during the year that relate to multiple operating periods.
Prepayments consist of tools, supplies, and other prepayments.

Tools and supplies put into use are allocated to expenses using the straight-line method over a
maximum period of 36 months.

Other prepayments are allocated to expenses using the straight-line method over a maximum
period of 36 months according to the term of the expense.

3.9 PAYABLES

Liabilities are amounts payable to suppliers and other entities. Liabilities include accounts
payable to suppliers, internal payables and other payables. Liabilities are not recorded at an
amount lower than the payment obligations.

The classification of payables is made under the following principle:

- Trade payables reflect commercial obligations arising from the purchase of goods, services,
and assets, where the seller is independent of the Company.

- Other payables reflect non-commercial obligations that are not related to purchase and sale
transactions

Accounts payable are tracked in detail by each entity and payment term.
3.10 ACCRUED EXPENSES

The Company's accrued expenses include interest expenses, expenses related to completed
projects, and actual expenses incurred during the reporting period but not yet paid due to the
absence of invoices or insufficient accounting records and documentation. These expenses are
recognized as production and business expenses in the reporting period.

The accrual of production and business expenses during the period is calculated rigorously and
must be supported by reasonable and reliable evidence of the expenses to be accrued. This
ensures that the accrued expenses recorded in this account accurately reflect the actual expenses
incurred.
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JOIN STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward, Form B09-DN
Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

3.

3.11

3.12

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
OWNERS’ EQUITY

The owner's contributed capital is recorded based on the actual contributed capital of
shareholders.

Retained earnings are profit from operations of the Company after deducting CIT in the year
and adjustments due to retrospective application of changes in accounting policies and
retrospective adjustments to material misstatements of the previous years.

Profit after CIT is to be distributed to shareholders after setting aside reserves according to the
Company's Charter as well as legal regulations and approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders. The distribution of profits to shareholders takes into account non-monetary items
in undistributed post-tax profits that may affect cash flow and the ability to pay dividends, such
as gains from revaluation of assets contributed as capital, gains from revaluation of monetary
items, and other non-monetary financial instruments. Dividends are recorded as payable when
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Company's revenue is recognized when the Company has the ability to receive economic
benefits that can be reliably measured. Net revenue is arranged at the reasonable value of
amounts received or receivable after deducting trade discounts, sales allowances, and returns.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met when recognizing revenue:

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when all (5) following conditions are satisfied:

e  Significant risks and rewards of ownership of products or goods are transferred to the buyer;

e The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e  The amount of revenue can be reliably measured. When the contract stipulates that the buyer
has the right to return purchased products or goods under specific conditions, revenue is
only recognized when those specific conditions no longer exist, and the buyer is not entitled
to return the products or goods (except in cases where customers have the right to return
goods in exchange for other goods or services);

e It is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company;

e  The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transactions can be measured reliably.

Sales of services

Revenue from a service provision transaction is recognized when the outcome of that transaction
can be reliably determined. In case a service provision transaction involves multiple periods,
revenue is recognized in the period according to the results of the work completed at the closing
date for preparing the financial statements of that period. The sale of services is recognized
when all the following conditions are satisfied:

e  Revenue can be reliably measured. When it is stipulated in the contract that the buyer has
the right to return services purchased under specific conditions, the revenue is only
recognized when such specific conditions are met, and services cannot be returned by the
buyer;

e It is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company;

e  Percentage of completion of services at the balance sheet date can be measured, and
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JOIN STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward, Form B09-DN
Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
3.12 REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONT’D)

e  Costs incurred in respect of rendering of services and costs incurred to completion of
rendering of services can be reliably measured.

Financial income

o Interest from long-term investments is estimated, and the right to receive interest from the
invested company is recognized.

e  Bank interest is recognized as per periodic notifications of banks, lending interest is
recognized on a time and actual interest basis.

3.13 COST OF GOODS SOLD

The cost of goods sold reflects the cost of services provided during the year. The cost of goods
sold is recognized in accordance with the revenue recognition principle. To ensure prudence, the
cost of goods sold also includes costs of direct materials consumed beyond normal levels, labour
costs, fixed overhead production costs not allocated to the value of inventory, even when goods
have not been sold; the value of inventory losses, damages, and provisions for inventory
devaluation.

3.14 FINANCIAL EXPENSES
The expenses recorded as financial expenses include:

e  Costs or losses related to financial investment activities;

e Losses from liquidation, transfer of short-term securities, transaction costs for selling
securities;

e  Provision for devaluation of trading securities, provisions for losses on investments in other
entities, losses incurred from foreign currency sales, exchange rate losses, etc.

These items are recorded based on the total amount incurred during the year without offsetting
against financial operating revenue.

3.15 TAX AND PAYABLES TO THE STATE BUDGET
Value added tax (VAT)

The Company applies the declaration and calculation of VAT according to the guidance of the
current tax law.

Corporate income tax

Corporate income tax (if any) represents the sum of the tax currently payable. The current tax
amount payable is calculated based on taxable income for the year. Taxable income differs from
net profit as reported in the Income Statement because it does not include income or expenses
that are taxable or deductible in other years (including loss carryforwards, if any) and does not
include non-taxable or non-deductible items.

The determination of the Company's income tax is based on current tax regulations. However,
these regulations change from time to time, and the final determination of corporate income tax
depends on the inspection results of the competent tax authority.
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JOIN STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward, Form B09-DN
Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)
315 TAX AND PAYABLES TO THE STATE BUDGET (CONT’D)

Other taxes

The Company declares and pays other taxes and fees to the local tax authorities according to
the current tax laws in Vietnam.

3.16 RELATED PARTIES

A party is considered to be related to the Company if it has the ability to control the Company
or exercise significant influence over the Company in making financial and operating decisions.
Related parties include:

e  Enterprises have the right to control or be directly or indirectly controlled by one or more
intermediaries or under the common control with companies, including the Parent
Company, subsidiaries of a Group, joint ventures, co-controlled business establishments
and associates.

e Individuals have the right to directly or indirectly vote in reported enterprises, having a
significant influence on these enterprises, key management has the authority and
responsibility for making plans, management and controlling activities of the Company,
including close family members of these individuals.

o  Enterprises owned by aforementioned individuals, having direct or indirect voting rights or
having a significant influence on the business

When considering each relationship of related parties, the nature of the relationship is paid
attention to, not merely its legal form. Thus, all transactions and balances arising for the financial
year ended 31 December 2024 are presented by the Company in the following disclosures.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND

Cash on hand 479,651,158 670,652,354
Cash at bank 11,352,798,685 11,835,610,912
Cash equivalents (*) 15,400,000,000 7,200,000,000
Total 27,232,449,843 19,706,263,266

(*) Cash equivalents are the Company’s term deposit contracts with a maturity period ranging
from 1 to 3 months, earning an interest rate of 3.7 — 4.2% per year.
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT

JOIN STOCK COMPANY

11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward,
Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Form B09-DN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

11.

12.

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Land use Total
rights
VYND YND
COST
01/01/2024 3,200,000,000 3,200,000,000
31/12/2024 3,200,000,000 3,200,000,000
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
01/01/2024 (697,916,689) (697,916,689)
- Charge for the year (125,000,004) (125,000,004)
31/12/2024 (822,916,693) (822,916,693)
NET BOOK VALUE
01/01/2024 2,502,083,311 2,502,083,311
31/12/2024 2,377,083,307 2,377,083,307

The land use rights in Chau Duc District, Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province, with an area of 2,000
square meters, are used as a Maritime Gas Station. The land use rights have a duration of 25.6

years, expiring in 2043.

PREPAYMENTS

Short-term

- Tools, supplies

- Insurance

- Others
Long-term

- Tools, supplies

- Land use rights (*)
- Others

Total

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
1,233,084,433 755,093,329
278,093,022 384,728,347
68,376,182 90,713,387
886,615,229 279,651,595
4,914,956,641 4,298,086,028
- 78,014,955
3,744,730,849 3,836,251,765
1,170,225,792 383,819,308

6,148,041,074

5,053,179,357

The value of land use rights represents the lump-sum rent for the land located at 11 Vo Thi Sau,
Gia Vien Ward, Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City, with a total leased area of 376.7 square
meters for a duration of 50 years, in accordance with Decision No. 2109/QD-UBND dated 11
May 2015 issued by the People's Committee of Hai Phong City. Intended use: Company
headquarters. Lump-sum rent: VND 4,576,046,000.
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT
JOIN STOCK COMPANY

11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward,

Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Form B09-DN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

13.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND

Long-term construction in progress 50,688,043,272 50,203,362,289
- ICD Phuoc Long project (1) 1,192,096,932 1,165,096,932
- Bac Rach Chiec- Phuoc Binh project (2) 36,572,312,865 36,413,020,771
- Bac Rach Chiec - Phuoc Long A 12,652,244,586 12,625,244,586

project (3)

- Others 271,388,889 -
Total 50,688,043,272 50,203,362,289

(1) ICD Phuoc Long Project

- Project name: Office headquarters and Product exhibition area.

- Investor: Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company (abbreviated as Vimadeco).
- Construction location: Km 7 Hanoi Highway, Phuoc Long A Ward, District 9, Ho Chi Minh
City.

- Scale: 25,903 square meters including Office headquarters and Product exhibition area.

- Investment form: New construction investment.

- Estimated total investment: Approximately VND 1,463.739 billion.

- Current status:

+ In November 2017, the Company submitted the Reports on the arrangement and relocation
of ICD Phuoc Long under report No. 183/BC-PTHH dated 20 November 2017, and No.
142/PTHH-TH dated 24 October 2018 to the Ho Chi Minh City People's Committee and the
Department of Natural Resources and Environment. However, no official response has been
received from the relevant authorities.

+On 07 June 2019, the Company's Board of Directors approved a resolution to cooperate with
the Consortium of Ngoc Viet Import Export Investment Company Limited and An Phu Joint
Stock Company to invest in and develope the Office headquarters - Product exhibition area
project on the ICD Phuoc Long land, Phuoc Long A Ward, District 9, Ho Chi Minh City.
Accordingly, Vimadeco will carry out legal procedures as required by the state management
agencies to allow Vimadeco to convert land use rights, become the investor of the above project
in accordance with the law, ensuring the enterprise's land use and management rights, and
maximizing Vimadeco's interests. The projected cooperation and profit-sharing ratio between
Vimadeco and the Consortium was agreed at 51%/49% respectively.

+ Currently, Vimadeco and the Consortium have signed the Termination Minutes of Principle
Agreement No. 14-10/2023/BB dated 14 October 2023, thereby terminating the cooperative
investment activities between the two parties.
+0On 10 October 2024, Vimadeco and City Garden Joint Stock Company signed a Memorandum
of Understanding on cooperation in developing this project. Currently, City Garden Joint Stock
Company is developing a Cooperation Plan to agree with Vimadeco, moving towards signing
Framework Contracts on cooperation for the project.

- As of 31 December 2024, the incurred expenses at the ICD Phuoc Long Project mainly include
consulting, surveying, and design costs.

(2) Bac Rach Chiec - Phuoc Binh Project

- Project name: Phuoc Binh Residential Area;
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JOIN STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward, Form B09-DN
Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

14.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (CONT’D)

(2) Bac Rach Chiec - Phuoc Binh Project (Cont’d)

- Investor: Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company (based on the Power of
Attorney contract granted by the employees of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock
Company to Mr. Bui Dinh Khanh - Chairman of the Trade Union of Vietnam Maritime
Development Joint Stock Company's Branch in Ho Chi Minh City; Investment Authorization
Contract No. 01/UTDT dated 08 September 2016 between Vietnam Maritime Development
Joint Stock Company and the Trade Union of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock
Company's Branch in Ho Chi Minh City);

- Construction location: Part of the Bac Rach Chiec Residential Area Project, Phuoc Binh Ward,
District 9, Ho Chi Minh City;

- Scale: 44,850 square meters including two 12-story apartment blocks, villas, townhouses, road
system, and parks;

- Investment form: New construction investment;

- Estimated total investment: approximately VND 1,391.233 billion.

- Investment capital sources:

+ According to document No. 876/CV-HDQT dated 27 July 2006 of Vietnam Maritime
Corporation (Vimadeco) directing the capital representative: The Corporation agreed with the
proposal of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company to invest in building the
Employees' Housing Area in Phuoc Binh Ward, with the investor being Vietnam Maritime
Development Joint Stock Company, mobilized capital from employees and other partners. The
Executive Board of the Trade Union organize and manage the project;

+ According to Resolution No. 862/NQ-HHVN dated 18 April 2012 of the Board of Members
of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company approving the investment policy of
the River Land Project (Phuoc Binh Project): The capital representative reported to the
Corporation to organize voting at the Board of Directors' meeting on approving the cooperation
between Vimadeco and the Consortium to establish a new legal entity to implement the Phuoc
Binh Residential Area Project, District 9, Ho Chi Minh City, with the capital
contribution/shareholding ratio between Vimadeco and the consortium set at 26%/74%
respectively;

+ On 07 June 2019, the Board of Directors of the Company passed a resolution on the Phuoc
Binh Residential Areca Project: The investment capital for the project since 2000 is from
employees and some partners (persons), not from the Company;

+ According to the meeting minutes and resolutions dated 07 July 2016, the possibility of
continuing capital contribution of the employees is very limited and they have a desire to divest
from the Phuoc Binh Project. Project participants have signed power of attorney contracts to
authorize the Chairman of the company's Trade Union at the Ho Chi Minh City branch with
certification from Notary Public Office No. 5, Ho Chi Minh City;

+ On 08 September 2016, the Chairman of the branch’s Trade Union signed Authorization
Contract No. 01/UTDT to authorize the Company's General Director to continue implementing
the project. In which, it is determined that the Trade Union of the Ho Chi Minh City Branch of
Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Sock Company (abbreviated as the Trade Union)
authorizes Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Sock Company to implement the project based
on the entire contribution capital being the mobilized capital of Trade Union members and some
other individuals. This contract is signed based on the principle that Vietnam Maritime
Development Joint Sock Company does not charge interest but only charges authorization fees,
so Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Sock Company will not be responsible when it cannot
continue to execute the contract due to unforeseen difficulties;

+ Capital sources received from employees and partners: VND 43,977,775,000. (Disclosure No.
18 - Other payables)
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JOIN STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward, Form B09-DN
Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

14.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (CONT’D)
(2) Bac Rach Chiec - Phuoc Binh Project (Cont’d)

- Project status:

+ According to Decision No. 282/QD-TTg dated 15 March 2001 of the Prime Minister on land
allocation for the construction of technical infrastructure of the Bac Rach Chiec Residential
Area’s main axis in Phuoc Long A Ward and Phuoc Binh Ward, District 9, Ho Chi Minh City,
the Phuoc Binh Residential Area Project is a component project of the Bac Rach Chiec
Residential Area Project;

+ Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company has signed an economic contract No.
03/HPKT on 08 March 2001 with District 10 Construction and Real Estate Services Company
regarding investment participation in the project;

+ The project has been approved by the Chief Architect of Ho Chi Minh City with the 1/500
planning by document No. 1954/KTST-DB2 dated 25 June 2001;

+ The Bac Rach Chiec Residential Area Project has been approved for adjustment and expansion
of detailed planning at a 1/2000 scale by the People's Committee of Ho Chi Minh City with
Decision No. 3061/QD-UBND dated 15 June 2011.

+0On 10 October 2024, Vimadeco and City Garden Joint Stock Company signed a Memorandum
of Understanding on cooperation in developing this project. Currently, City Garden Joint Stock
Company is developing a Cooperation Plan to agree with Vimadeco, moving towards signing
Framework Contracts on cooperation for the project.

- As of 31 December 2024, the total aggregated expenses include compensation and
infrastructure construction costs, land clearance compensation, land revelling, surveying and
design costs...

(3) Bac Rach Chiec - Phuoc Long A Project

- Project Name: Phuoc Long A Mixed-Use Apartment Complex.

- Total Investment Amount: VND 1.463,739 billion.

- Investor Name: Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company.

- Scale: 49,452 square meters including office buildings, commercial areas, apartments,
elementary school, road system, parks, and sports area.

- Investment Form: New construction investment.

- Parties involved in the investment:

+ On 07 June 2019, the Board of Directors of the Company passed a resolution to cooperate in
establishing a new legal entity with the Consortium of Ngoc Viet - An Phu to invest in the
Project.

+ Vimadeco is responsible for all invested costs.

+ The Consortium of Ngoc Viet - An Phu is not responsible for incurred costs due to the absence
of a signed cooperation investment agreement.

+ The capital contribution/shareholding ratio of Vimadeco and the Consortium when
establishing the new legal entity to carry out the project is 51%/49% respectively.

+ Currently, Vimadeco and the Consortium have not signed a cooperation investment agreement
as they have not reached a consensus on the business cooperation ratio and profit sharing.

- As of 31 December 2023, aggregated costs include main axis infrastructure costs, land
clearance compensation, land plot infrastructure costs, surveying, and design costs.

- Current Status:

+ Currently, Vimadeco and the Consortium have signed a Termination Minutes of Principle
Agreement No. 14-10/2023/BB dated 14 October 2023, terminating the cooperation investment
activities between the two parties.

+0n 10 October 2024, Vimadeco and City Garden Joint Stock Company signed a Memorandum
of Understanding on cooperation in developing this project. Currently, City Garden Joint Stock
Company is developing a Cooperation Plan to agree with Vimadeco, moving towards signing
Framework Contracts on cooperation for the project.
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT
JOIN STOCK COMPANY
11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward,

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Form B09-DN

Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

14.

15.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (CONT’D)
Difficulties and obstacles of both projects (2) and (3)

- Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company has not been recognized as the
secondary investor although the Phuoc Long A Apartment Complex Project has compensated
for 100% of the land area.

- The project has not been approved for adjusted 1/500 planning according to Decision No.
3061/QD-UBND dated 15 June 2011 of the People's Committee of Ho Chi Minh City.

- The company has not been allocated land nor has obtained a Land Use Right Certificate.

- Since 2008, there have been disputes over land on a portion of the land area belonging to the
Bac Rach Chiec - Phuoc Long A project. Therefore, after resolving the disputes, the project may
lose an area of 1,653.4 square meters, leaving only 47,798.6 square meters (Detailed in
Disclosure 35.3).

- The North Rach Chiec - Phuoc Binh and North Rach Chiec - Phuoc Long A projects are
being inspected by State management agencies regarding the implementation of
compensation, support and resettlement for the area within the main infrastructure of these
projects. As of 31 December 2024, there is still no final conclusion on the inspection work.
Specifically, Official Dispatch No. 3979/UBND-DT dated 15 October 2020 of the Ho Chi
Minh City People's Committee has the content "Assigning Real Estate 10 Joint Stock
Company to coordinate with the People's Committee of District 9 (now Thu Duc City) to
maintain the current status of the project until the investigation results of the Investigation
Police Agency - City Police are available".

- According to Official Dispatch No. 441/UBND-DT dated 20 January 2025, the People's
Committee of Ho Chi Minh City decided to cancel the content of Official Dispatch No.
3979/UBND-DT dated 15 October 2020 on local adjustment of the detailed planning at a
scale of 1/500 for the Bac Rach Chiec Residential Area, Phuoc Long A Ward, Thu Duc
City, invested by Real Estate 10 Joint Stock Company.

This Official Dispatch requests consideration and handling of local adjustments to the
detailed planning scale of 1/500 and continuing to carry out related procedures in
accordance with legal regulations. At the same time, the City People's Committee assigned
the City Inspectorate to coordinate with relevant units to urgently review and report the
implementation status of the Inspection Conclusion No. 29/KL-TTTP-P4 dated 7
September 2017.

In addition, the City People's Committee also requested relevant units to promptly guide the
Investor to complete legal procedures in accordance with applicable laws and regulations
to proceed with project implementation t.

Due to the reasons outlined above, both projects are currently suspended. The Company's Board
of Directors has conducted a careful assessment of the recovery potential of these projects and
fully believes that they can still be resumed. For detailed information on advance payments to
suppliers, payments to employee shareholders contributing capital to the projects, and payable
deposits related to the implementation of these projects, please refer to disclosures No. 7 and
18.

SHORT-TERM ACCRUED EXPENSES

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND

Short-term 1,488,041,909 415,094,965
- Accrued business production costs 1,488,041,909 415,094,965
Total 1,488,041,909 415,094,965
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT
JOIN STOCK COMPANY

11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward,

Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Form B09-DN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

18. OTHER PAYABLES

a) Short-term

- Short-term mortgages, deposits received

- Trade union fee

- Social insurance

- Dividend and profit payable

- Ngoc Viet Import Export Investment
Limited Company (1)
+ Deposit for Bac Rach Chiec - Phuoc
Binh project implementation

- Other payables

b) Long-term
- Long-term mortgages, deposits received
- Other payables

+ Employees contribute capital to the
project Bac Rach Chiec - Phuoc Blnh

+ Interest on deposit from the project
Bac Rach Chiec - Phuoc Binh (2)

Total

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
4,475,963,834 4,185,167,096
618,884,600 748,884,600
163,193,938 129,036,652

- 177,501

138,473,130 387,840,150

2,232,876,700
2,232,876,700

1,322,535,466
63,854,279,939

7,307,541,510
56,546,738,429
43,977,775,000

12,568,963,429

2,232,876,700
2,232,876,700

686,351,493

61,829,122,099

6,033,597,200
55,795,524,899

43,977,775,000

11,817,749,899

68,330,243,773

66,014,289,195

(1) Ngoc Viet Import-Export Investment Co., Ltd. made a deposit for investment cooperation
in the development of three projects in District 9, Ho Chi Minh City, under a Memorandum of
Understanding between Maritime Development Joint Stock Company and the consortium of
Ngoc Viet Import-Export Investment Co., Ltd. and An Phu Joint Stock Company. Details of the

projects are presented in Notes 07 and 14.

(2) The amount contributed by the Company's employees for the Bac Rach Chiec - Phuoc Binh
Project was deposited in a term savings account, and the corresponding interest was accrued on
the unused funds. Detailed information on the project and related advance payments to suppliers

is presented in Notes 07 and 14.

19. SHORT-TERM UNEARNED REVENUE

a) Short-term

- Container repair revenue
- Revenue from business cooperation at
NHI1 yard

Total

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
2,268,129,059 2,521,884,144
218,129,059 471,884,144

2,050,000,000

2,050,000,000

2,268,129,059

2,521,884,144
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT
JOIN STOCK COMPANY

11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward,

Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Form B09-DN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

20.

20.2

20.3

20.4

20.5

21.

OWNERS’ EQUITY (CONT’D)

DETAILS OF OWNERS’ EQUITY

Vietnam Maritime Corporation
VIMC Container Lines JSC
Contributed capital of other subjects

Total

31/12/2024
VND

01/01/2024
VND

45,900,000,000
44,100,000,000

45,900,000,000

44,100,000,000

90,000,000,000

90,000,000,000

EQUITY TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERS AND DIVIDENDS, PROFITS SHARED

- Equity

+ Equity at beginning of year
+ Equity at end of year

- Profits, dividends shared

SHARES

Number of shares to be issued
Number of shares offered to the public
+ Ordinary shares

Number of shares repurchased

+ Ordinary shares

Number of shares in circulation

+ Ordinary shares

Par value (VND/share)

FUNDS

Investment and development fund
Total

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Foreign currencies

UsD

Year 2024
VND

Year 2023
VND

90,000,000,000

90,000,000,000

90,000,000,000
10,260,000,000

90,000,000,000
90,000,000,000
90,000,000,000

9,000,000,000

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Share Share
9,000,000 9,000,000
9,000,000 9,000,000
9,000,000 9,000,000

2 2

2 2

8,999,998 8,999,998
8,999 998 8,999,998
10,000 10,000
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
26,272,308,883 21,919,639,250
26,272,308,883 21,919,639,250
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
36,495.38 47,304.61
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JOIN STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward, Form B09-DN
Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

22. REVENUE FROM SALE OF GOOD AND RENDERING OF SERVICES

Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VND

Revenue 214,993,873,720 162,952,110,551
- Sales of merchandise 102,711,929,776 64,616,147,312

- Sales of services
Total

112,281,943,944

98,335,963,239

214,993,873,720

162,952,110,551

Revenue from related parties is detailed in Note 36.2

23. COST OF GOODS SOLD
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Cost of goods sold 91,394,265,346 63,367,702,991
Cost of services rendered 95,691,258,481 74,327,332,407
Total 187,085,523,827 137,695,035,398
24. FINANCE INCOME
Year 2024 Year 2023
VYND VND
Bank interest, lending interest 2,128,647,908 3,919,567,262
Shared dividends, profits 270,000,000 270,000,000
Foreign exchange difference during the period 169,311,304 232,216,739
Profit from the transfer of investment 6,210,000,000 -
Other finance income 1,000,000 30,567,829
Total 8,778,959,212 4,452,351,830
25, FINANCE EXPENSE
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Foreign exchange difference loss during the period 70,083,963 42,394,630
Foreign exchange difference loss at year-end 69,309,516 855,527

Reversal of provision for investment loss
Other financial expenses

Total

147,020,556

(728,761,237)

286,414,035

(685,511,080)
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT
JOIN STOCK COMPANY

11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward,

Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Form B09-DN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

26.

27.

28.

29.

SELLING EXPENSE AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

a) Selling expenses
Outsourcing services
Other monetary expenses
b) General and administrative expense
- Administrative staff costs
- Raw materials, office equipment
- Fixed asset depreciation
- Taxes, fees, and charges
- Provisions
- Qutsourcing services
- Other monetary expenses

Total
OTHER INCOME

Disposal of fixed assets

Land lease payments reduced

Assets, tools and equipment found excess
Others

Total
OTHER EXPENSE

Disposal of fixed assets
Fines
Other expenses

Total
OPERATING EXPENSES BY NATURE

Raw materials

Labor costs

Fixed asset depreciation
Provisions

Outsourcing services
Other monetary expenses

Total

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
785,772,557 721,614,437

- 1,163,636

785,772,557 720,450,801
18,668,625,658 16,022,153,849
9,029,721,680 10,031,395,649
534,508,222 728,548,470
454,985,617 692,875,711
87,988,972 133,850,099
3,630,769,969 (43,091,010)
1,498,051,900 1,338,845,272

3,432,599,298

3,139,729,658

19,454,398,215 16,743,768,286
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
979,556,099 554,768,370

1,509,885,321

3,517,984,655
350,878,678

1,515,403,639 24,815,546
4,004,845,059 4,448,447,249
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

= 16,962,000

34,019,073 -
592,080,666 7,341,600
626,099,739 24,303,600
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

6,961,310,103
26,956,520,481
3,590,756,374
3,630,769,969
62,943,535,933
20,429,530,429

4,945,334,006
25,976,693,618
3,864,327,014
(35,710,370)
40,984,603,520
19,180,763,483

124,512,423,289

94,916,011,271
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT
JOIN STOCK COMPANY

11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward,

Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024

Form B09-DN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

30. CURRENT CORPORATE INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VYND
Total profit before tax 19,159,172,243 18,069,090,950
Non-deductible expenses 34,019,073 1,869,911

- Other ieligible expenses 34,019,073 1,869,911
Non-taxable income 270,000,000 270,000,000

- Shared dividends, profits 270,000,000 270,000,000

Total taxable income for the year 18,923,191,316 17,800,960,861
Loss carryforward i -
Current CIT rate 20% 20%
Estimated CIT payable 3,784,638,263 3,560,192,172
Total current CIT expense 3,784,638,263 3,560,192,172

31. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

Profit after CIT 15,374,533,980 14,508,898,778
Adjustment reduction (**) - (4,054,106,685)
- Set aside welfare reward fund for 2022 - (4,054,106,685)

Profit or loss allocated
to shareholders owning
ordinary shares (VND)
The weighted average

number of oustanding
shares (Share)

Basic earnings per share (VND/Share) (*)

15,374,533,980

8,999,998

10,454,792,093

8,999,998

1,708

1,162

(*) At the time of issuing the audited financial statementsfor the financial year ending 31
December 2024, there were no data available to allocate the 2024 Bonus and Welfare Fund. The
allocation data will be based on the Annual Shareholders' General Meeting Resolution for 2025.

(**) The basic earnings per share for 2023 have been adjusted as the Company has implemented
the Allocation of Bonus and Welfare Fund according to Resolution No. 42/NQ - PHDCD dated
10 April 2024 of the Annual Shareholders' General Meeting.

Accordingly, the basic earnings per share in 2023 is VND 1.162/Share (the figure in the 2023
Financial Statements before adjustment was VND 1.612 /Share).
32. DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Board of General Directors assessed that in the subsequent time, there will be no impact of
instruments that can be converted into shares to dilute the value of shares, so diluted earnings
per share will be equal to basic earnings per share.
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT JOIN STOCK FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward, Ngo Quyen District, Hai Form B09-DN
Phong City

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

34.

COMMITMENTS

- Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company - Ho Chi Minh City Branch, signed
contract number 01/2024/HDPHTKD/VANCUONG-VMD with Van Cuong Construction Joint
Stock Company for leasing a yard (According to the business cooperation contract number
01/HTKS-710&VC.2017 between Van Cuong Construction Joint Stock Company and 710
Traffic Construction Corporation) at Binh Thang Ward, Di An Town, Binh Duong Province.

+ Leased area: 16,900 m?;

+ Office area: 200 m?;

+ Purpose of using the yard: For container storage and related services;

+ Payment method: Lump-sum payment within 15 days upon receipt of a valid invoice;

+ Rental rate: VND 230,000,000/month (VAT included).

- Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company signed a contract for the purchase state-
owned houses and land at No. 11 Vo Thi Sau, Gia Vien Ward, Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong
City, with a total land area of 376.7 square meters, for 50 years according to Decision No.
2109/QD-UBND dated 11 May 2015 by the People's Committee of Hai Phong City.

+ Purpose: Head office of the company;

+ Lump sum | rent: VND 4,576,046,000.

- The Company leased land at Km 7 Hanoi Highway, Phuoc Long A Ward, District 9, Ho Chi
Minh City under Decision No. 5606/QD-UBND dated 25 October 2016, for container
transshipment yard purposes, with a total area of 18,581.1 square meters. The Company is
required to pay land rental in accordance with current government regulations.

- The leased land at No. 41 Nguyen Van Linh, Phuc Dong Ward, Long Bien District, Hanoi
under Decision No. 1508/QD-UBND dated 01 April 2019, for container transshipment yard
purposes, with a total area of 10,140.5 square meters. The Company is required to pay land
rental in accordance with current government regulations.

- The Company signed contract No. 124/HDTD dated 30 June 2014, with the People's
Committee of Hai Phong City for land lease at Dong Hai 1 Ward, Hai An District, Hai Phong
City. The land boundaries were determined according to a cadastral map (extract) at a 1/500
scale prepared by Hai Phong Construction Design and Consulting Joint Stock Company and
inspected by the Department of Natural Resources and Environment on 08 January 2006. The
total area of the leased land is 53,808.6 square meters.

+ Land lease term: From 15 September 1998, to 15 September 2048,;

+ Payment method: Annually;

+ Purpose of land lease: Construction of a container logistics, storage, and repair center;

+ The company must pay the annual land rent according to the current regulations of the State.

- The Company signed contract No. 18 HD/TD dated 14 May 1998, with the Hai Phong City
Department of Land Administration for land lease at Van My Ward, Ngo Quyen District, Hai
Phong City. The land location was determined based on a cadastral map at a 1/500 scale
approved by the Department of Land Administration. The total leased area is 20,215.92 square
meters.

+ Land lease term: 30 years from 14 May 1998,;

+ Payment method: Annually;

+ Purpose: Exploitation, management, and transportation of containers;

+ The company must pay the annual land rent according to the current regulations of the State.
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT JOIN STOCK FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward, Ngo Quyen District, Hai Form B09-DN
Phong City

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

34. COMMITMENTS (CONT’D)

- The Company signed contract No. 19 HD/TD dated 10 June 1998, with the Hai Phong City
Department of Land Administration for land lease in Van My Ward, Ngo Quyen District, Hai
Phong City. The land location was determined based on a cadastral map at a 1/500 scale
approved by the Department of Land Administration. The total leased area is 4,344.08 square
meters.

+ Land lease tém: 30 years since 06 April 1998;

+ Payment method: Annually;

+ Purpose: Exploitation, management, and transportation of containers;

+ The company must pay the annual land rent according to the current regulations of the State.

- Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company - Ho Chi Minh City Branch signed
lease contract No. 0603-2020/HDTB on 30 December 2019, with Long Binh Investment Service
Trading Company Limited to lease a container yard located at group 5, ferry area, Long Binh
Ward, Road No. 11, District 9, Ho Chi Minh City, with a total area of 53,440 square meters.
+ Purpose: Storage of empty or loaded containers related warehouse services;
+ Payment method: Annually;
+ Rental rate: VND 9,072/square meter/month, with a total rent of VND 484,807,680/month
(including VAT). This rate applies to the year 2020. The rates for subsequent years are adjusted
as follows: '
o From July 2021: Rental adjustment for Area 2 (20,900 m?) to VND 9,800/m*month.
o From July 2022: Rental adjustment for Area 1 (19,040 m?) and Area 3 (13,500 m®) to
VND 9,800/m?*month.
o Subsequent adjustments every three years, with increases or decreases (if any) not
exceeding 8% based on market rates

- Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company - Ho Chi Minh City Branch signed
lease contract No. 08/HDTB dated 11 April 2023 and Contract Appendix No. PL01-08/HDTB
dated 22 August 2023 with Long Binh Investment Service Trading Company Limited for leasing
a container yard located on Vo Chi Cong Road, Phuoc Tan Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai
Province, with a total area of 27,000 square meters.

+ Purpose of leasing the yard: exploitation of the container yard and Logistics services;

+ Payment method: Annually;

+ Rental rate: VND 10,000/square meter/month (including VAT). This rate is fixed for the first
5 years. From the 6th year onwards, the yard rental rate can be negotiated for adjustment, with
an increase not exceeding 5% of the initial rental rate (VND 10,000/square meter/month).

35. OTHER INFORMATION

1. Land exchange with SACA Joint Stock Company (referred to as SACA) and land
transfer to Vinh Loc Company Limited (referred to as Vinh Loc)

On 15 December 2003, under contract 69/VMD — SACA between Vietnam Maritime
Development Joint Stock Company and SACA Company, the Company agreed to exchange
18,137 square meters of agricultural land for SACA in return for 2,943.27 square meters of land
with infrastructure belonging to the component project - Bac Rach Chiec Residential Area
project, which had been approved the 1/500 planning by SACA. According to the agreement
between the two parties, the Company will receive compensation money in lieu of receiving
land. As of reporting date, the Company has received compensation from SACA equivalent to
2,511.05 square meters of land; with an outstanding compensation area of 432.22 square meters.
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VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT JOIN STOCK FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
11 Vo Thi Sau Street, Gia Vien Ward, Ngo Quyen District, Hai Form B09-DN
Phong City

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

35.

36.

36.1

OTHER INFORMATION (CONT’D)

1. Land exchange with SACA Joint Stock Company (referred to as SACA) and land
transfer to Vinh Loc Company Limited (referred to as Vinh Loc) (Cont’d)

On the other hand, the Company has transferred 14,533 square meters of land to SACA, but
there remains 3,604 square meters yet to be transferred as per the signed contract, due to this
area being under dispute with Vinh Loc Company Limited.

If assessed based on the conversion ratio of the area conducted in Contract 69/VMD-SACA, the
Company is obligated to transfer land or make a monetary payment equivalent to 547.54 square
meters of land with infrastructure. This is less than the area of land still owed to SACA, which
amounts to 115.32 square meters. :

If assessed based on the average compensation price per square meter that the Company
previously received from SACA for compensation of 2,511.05 square meters of land, the
minimum average compensation price is VND 12,855,000/square meter (rounded), the
minimum estimated amount to be paid to SACA is approximately VND 1,482,438,600 (115.32
square meters x VND 12,855,000/square meter). The parties will consider resolving these issues
after the competent state agency makes a decision regarding the area in dispute with Vinh Loc
Company Limited.

2. The disputed land area of 6,748 square meters must be transferred to Vinh Loc
Company Limited as follows:

- Vinh Loc Company Limited has the right to use 6,748 square meters of disputed land with
Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company in Phuoc Long A ward, District 9, Ho
Chi Minh City according to the following documents:

+ Decision No. 432/QD-BTNMT dated 07 February 2018 by the Ministry of Natural Resources
and Environment on resolving land disputes between Vimadeco and Vinh Loc;

+ Document No. 1409/UBND-NCPC dated 17 April 2019 by the People's Committee of Ho Chi
Minh City on resolving complaints and petitions of Vinh Loc Company Limited in District 9,
Ho Chi Minh City;

+ Land handover minutes dated 13 June 2019 of the Inspectorate of Ho Chi Minh City on the
implementation of Decision No. 432/QD-BTNMT dated 07 February 2018 of the Ministry of
Natural Resources and Environment;

Therefore, the Company must transfer 6,748 square meters of land back to Vinh Loc (the current
actual area is 6,833.3 square meters).

- Due to the discrepancy between the area stated in Decision No. 432/QD-BTNMT and that
stated in document No. 1409/UBND-NCPC, the Company has has requested clarification from
the the Ministry of Natural Resources and Environment for opinions. However, the Ministry’s
response did not specify the exact area that must be transferred..

- Therefore, the Company will proceed with the transfer after receiving official guidance or
transfer decisions from the relevant authorities.

RELATED PARTIES INFORMATION
RELATED PARTIES
List of related individuals

In the financial year ending on 31 December 2024, the members of the Board of Directors, the
The Board of Management, the Supervisory Board, the Chief Accountant, the person in charge
of disclosure, and close family members of key management personnel were identified as related
parties of the Company.
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36.

36.2

RELATED PARTIES INFORMATION (CONT’D)

List of related organizational parties

Company name

Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
VIMC Container Lines JSC

Vietnam Ocean Shipping Agency Corporation
Vietnam Ocean Shipping Joint Stock Company
VIMC Logistics Joint Stock Company

Cam Ranh Port Joint Stock Company
Vinaship Seaport Joint Stock Company

Port of Haiphong Joint Stock Company
Nghe Tinh Port Joint Stock Company

Sai Gon Port Joint Stock Company

Da Nang Port Joint Stock Company

Cai Mep International Terminal Co., Ltd
Vietnam Container Operation Co., Ltd.

Vietnam Hi-tech Transportation Company Ltd.
Bien Dong Shipping Company Limited

VIMC Dinh Vu Port Joint Stock Company

Cai Lan Port Investment Joint Stock Company

Hau Giang Maritime Service Limited Liability Company

Can Tho Port Joint Stock Company
Vinalines Nha Trang One Member Co., Ltd
Quy Nhon Port Joint Stock Company

TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES

Revenue with related parties
- Vietnam Container Operation Co., Ltd.
- Cai Mep International Terminal Co., Ltd

- VIMC Logistics Joint Stock Company

- VIMC Shipping Company - Branch of Vietnam
Maritime Corporation

- Bien Dong Shipping Co., Ltd.

- Vietnam Hi-tech Transportation Company Ltd.

- VIMC Container Lines JSC

Relationship

Parent Company of VIMC Container Lines JSC
Parent Company of Vietnam Maritime
Development Joint Stock Company

Subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
Subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
Subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
Subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
Subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
Subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
Subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
Subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
Subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
Subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
Subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
Subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
Subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
Subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
Subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
Subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
Subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
Subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
Subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
136,371,777 1,096,049,363

18,877,581,818
4,432,053,792

9,758,781,813
629,542,509

63,297,829 -
2,047,814 168,529,897

- 467,500

38,897,186 -
23,550,250,216 11,653,371,082
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36. RELATED PARTIES INFORMATION (CONT’D)

36.2 TRANSACTION WITH REATED PARTIES

Purchase goods, services from related parties

- Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC

- Vietnam Container Operation Co., Ltd.

- VIMC Dinh Vu Port JSC

- Cai Mep International Terminal Co., Ltd

- Vietnam Ocean Shipping Agency Corporation

- Port of Haiphong Joint Stock Company

- Vietnam Ocean Shipping Joint Stock Company
- VIMC Logistics Joint Stock Company

- VIMC Container Lines JSC

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
464,219,292 452,383,761
19,503,000 42,513,098
13,790,000 -
492,499,999 206,181,818
- 924,444,524

10,778,000 2,800,000

- 31,111,112
75,900,000 13,200,000
11,666,668 -

1,088,356,959

1,672,634,313

Income, remuneration of the Board of Management, Supervisory Board, Board of General
Directors, and Head of Finance and Accounting Department.

Name

. Le Huy Duong

. Nguyen Chi Kien

. Vu Viet Thang

. Vu Chau Thanh

. Dao Hong Chuong
Mr. Le Dong

Mr, Pham Thanh Nhan
Mr. Phan Nhan Thao
Mrs. Duong Thi Hong
Hanh

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Hong
Dung

Mrs, Do Lan Huong
Mr. Pham Quoc Hung

SEEER

Mrs. Nguyen Thuy Van

_ Position

Chairman

Member of Board of Management
Member of Board of Management
Member of Board of Management
Member of Board of Management
Member of Board of Management
General Director

General Director

Head of Board of Supervisors

Member of Board of Supervisors

Member of Board of Supervisors
Member of Board of
Supervisors/Container terminal

Head of Accounting Department

Total income of the Board of Directors, Board of
Supervisors, Executive Board, and Head of Accounting

Department

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
154,511,100 65,772,727
104,913,400 485,773,089
62,273,000 -
113,413,400 91,489,200
113,413,400 95,747,000
30,780,100 40,863,636
112,440,000 -
486,503,309 183,878,427
21,000,000 41,863,636
75,053,100 -
87,667,100 76,781,300
373,904,578 406,077,112

424,583,056

383,857,097

2,160,455,543

1,872,103,224
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363 BALANCE WITH RELATED PARTIES

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
Trade receivables
- Vietnam Container Operation Co., Ltd. 1,142,041,792 1,138,964,896
- VIMC Logistics Joint Stock Company 1,038,280,580 632,503,760
- Cai Mep International Terminal Co., Ltd 1,689,300,000 1,090,260,000
- Dong Do - Hai Phong Port Container Lines Joint 1,661,053,069 1,661,053,069
Stock Company
VIMC Shipping Company - Branch of Vietnam 68,361,655 -
Maritime Corporation
30,518,960 -
5,629,556,056 4,522,781,725
Trade payables
- Vinabridge Ltd. 65,461,408 45,697,408
- Cai Mep International Terminal Co., Ltd 49,500,000 32,400,000
- VIMC Logistics Joint Stock Company - 14,256,000
- Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC 2,100,000 -
117,061,408 92,353,408

37. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Directors of the Company affirms that, in their opinion, on all material aspects,
there have been no significant events occurring after the accounting cutoff date that would affect
the financial position and operations of the Company necessitating adjustment or disclosure in
the financial statements for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024.

38. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Comparative figures are those from the audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended 31
December 2023 of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company.

Hai Phong, 18 February 2025
Preparer Head of Finance and ,_f:aﬁﬁ(?f’_

Accounting Department -I,c'g? (Tfl'f;JNG .'. ‘

p

0 & o~ COPHAN-
Ehmo— bl ot o)
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Sai Thi Thom Nguyen Thuy Van
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VIETNAM MARITIME THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

DEVELOPMENT Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No.: /TTr-PTHH Hai Phong, March ..., 2025
PROPOSAL

Regarding the distribution of profits for 2024

To:  Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025
Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company

- Pursuant to the current Charter of Organization and Operation of Vietnam Maritime

Development Joint Stock Company;,
- Pursuant to the Financial Regulations under Decision No. 144/QD-PTHH issued on
October 21, 2021
- Pursuant to the Company's audited financial statements for 2024,

The Board of Directors of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company
respectfully proposes to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for approval of the

Company's 2024 profit distribution as follows:

No. Content A(;I;lglll)l;t Notes
Total undistributed
1 | after-tax profit as at 15,374,533,980
31/12/2024
11 Reta.ined earnings from 0
previous years
1.2 | 2024 after-tax profit 15,374,533,980
2 | Distribution to funds 8,174,533,980
The Company's Executive Board
proposes allocating 30% of after-tax
profit to the Development Investment
Fund, aiming to:
- Prepare capital for investment and
continue implementing three company
projects in the Ho Chi Minh City area
(based on documents from the Ho Chi
Minh City People’s Committee
+ Development regarding the continuation of the Bac
2.1 investment fund 4,612,360,194 | Rach Chiec project).
- Establish funding for additional
infrastructure  investments,  support
long-term plans, develop sustainable
infrastructure for the company, and
replace existing infrastructure nearing
expiration.
- Prepare for investments in equipment
and infrastructure to support service
provision for VIMC Lines.




29 + Bonus and welfare

3,162,173,786

Pursuant to the implementation of the
Bonus and Welfare Fund in 2024 and
the planned utilization of the fund in
2025, and to ensure that employee
welfare expenditures remain consistent

profit (5=3-4)

fund with 2023 and 2024, the company's
Executive Board proposes allocating
20.6% of after-tax profit, equivalent to
2.4 months of the average employee
income in 2024.
In 2024, the company's business
activities faced numerous challenges
due to unexpected fluctuations. To
achieve the planned revenue and profit
targets, the Board of Directors, the
+ Management bonus Board of Supervisors, the Execu'tive
2.3 400,000,000 | Board, and company executives
fund . . .
continuously implemented solutions to
safeguard capital and ensure the
fulfillment  of  planned  targets.
Therefore, the company's Executive
Board proposes allocating 2.6% of
after-tax profit as a bonus for managers.
Remaining profit after
3 | fund distribution (3=1- 7,200,000,000
2)
Dividend payout ratio
2024/Charter capital 8%
(VND 90 billion)
4 Total dividend payment
for 202.4 (Tlme of . (Time of execution is authorized to the
execution is authorized 7,200,000,000 Board of Directors for decision)
to the Board of Directors
for decision)
Remaining
5 | undistributed after-tax 0

The Board of Directors of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company
respectfully submits this proposal to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for

consideration and approval.
Sincerely!

Recipients:
- As above;
- Save: General Department,

Accounting and Organization Department;V02.

O/B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN

Le Duy Duong




VIETNAM MARITIME THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

DEVELOPMENT Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No.: /TTr-PTHH Hai Phong, March ..., 2025

PROPOSAL

Regarding the approval of the 2024 remuneration fund and the proposal for the 2025
remuneration fund for the Board of Directors and the non-executive Board of
Supervisors

To: The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 2025
Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company

- Pursuant to the current Charter of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock

Company;

- Pursuant to Resolution No. 42/NQ-DHDCD dated April 10, 2024, of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders;
- Pursuant to the audited 2024 Financial Statements of Vietnam Maritime

Development Joint Stock Company.

The Board of Directors of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company
respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (AGM) for
approval the remuneration payments for the Board of Directors and non-executive members
of the Board of Supervisors for 2024, as well as the proposed remuneration fund for 2025,
as follows:

I. Remuneration for the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors in 2024:

The AGM is requested to approve the final remuneration settlement for the
Chairman of the Board of Directors, Board members, Head of the Board of Supervisors, and

non-executive Board of Supervisors” members for 2024 as follows:

Plan 2024 Implementation 2024
Payment Payment
N Position Number | (Milion |, 1°®! | Number | (Million | oI
0. (Million (Million
of people | VND/ VND of people VND/ VND)
month) month)
Chairman of the
1 10 120 1 10 120
Board of Directors
Members of Board 4 6 288 4 6 288

1




of Directors

Head of the Board

of Supervisors

Board of
Supervisors’ 2 4 96 2 4 96

members

Total 8 576 8 576

I1. Salary and Remuneration Plan for the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors in 2025.

1. Salary Plan for the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors in 2025.

According to the 2025 plan, no full-time personnel will hold the positions of Chairman
of the Board of Directors, Board Member, Head of the Board of Supervisors, or member of
the Board of Supervisors. Therefore, the Company does not prepare a salary plan for these
positions in 2025.

2. Remuneration Plan for the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors in
2025.

Propose the AGM to approve the proposed remuneration plan for the Chairman of the
Board of Directors, Board members, Head of the Board of Supervisors, and non-executive

Board of Supervisors” members in 2025 as follows:

Plan 2025
. Expense
No. Position Number of . Total
(Million .
people (Million VND)
VND/month)
1 Chairman of the Board 1 10 120
of Directors
2 Members of Board of 4 6 288
Directors
3 Head of the Board of 1 6 72
Supervisors
4 | Board of Supervisors’ 2 4 96
members
Total 8 576




The Board of Directors of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company
respectfully submits this proposal to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for

consideration and approval.

Sincerely!
Recipients: O/B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- Asabove; CHAIRMAN

- Save: General Affairs Department; VO3.

Le Duy Duong



VIETNAM MARITIME THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
DEVELOPMENT Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No.: /TTr-PTHH Hai Phong, March ..., 2025

PROPOSAL
Regarding the selection of the auditing firm for the 2025 financial statements of
Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company

To: General Meeting of Shareholders Vietnam Maritime Development
Joint Stock Company.

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises N0.59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020 and
implementing documents;

Pursuant to the Charter of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company.

In accordance with the provisions of law and the Charter of Vietnam Maritime
Development Joint Stock Company, the Board of Supervisors of the Company respectfully
submits to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for approval of the list of
auditing firms to audit the 2025 Financial Statements of Vietnam Maritime Development
Joint Stock Company, as follows:

1. Principles for selecting an independent auditing Firm:

a. Being a reputable and independent auditing firm, trusted by many public companies,
with a team of highly qualified and experienced auditors;

b. As a company legally operating in Vietnam and approved by the State Securities
Commission to audit public interest entities, select a leading auditing firm from the list of
qualified auditing firms annually announced by the Ministry of Finance to audit and review the
2025 Financial Statements of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company.

c. Have reasonable audit fees, consistent with the content, quality and progress of the
audit of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company.

d. Provide free training courses on finance, accounting, and taxes Vietnam Maritime
Development Joint Stock Company.

2. List of recommended auditing firms:

The Board of Supervisors of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company
has compiled a ranking of independent auditing firms from the list of audit organizations
approved to conduct audits for public-interest entities in 2025, as authorized by the Ministry
of Finance in Decision No. 2730/QD-BTC dated November 15, 2024. This ranking aims to
select the most competent independent auditing firm that meets the requirements for auditing



the financial statements of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company. The Board
of Supervisors has proposed the following selection criteria:

- Have large revenue from reviewing and auditing financial statements.

- Has a large number of staff and a team of professional, highly qualified and
experienced auditors.

- Having a large number of clients, with priority given to auditing firms that have
conducted audits for large-scale companies in the same or similar industry as the
Company.

The Company's Board of Supervisors proposes the following three independent
auditing firms:

- AASC Auditing Firm Company Limited;
- A&C Auditing and Consulting Company Limited;
- UHY Auditing and Consulting Company Limited.

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for approval of the
content, selection criteria, and the list of auditing firms mentioned above, and for
authorization of the Company's Board of Directors to decide on the selection of the
independent auditing firm for the 2025 financial statements of Vietnam Maritime
Development Joint Stock Company, ensuring quality, efficiency, and reasonable costs in
compliance with legal regulations./.

Recipients: O/B. BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
- Asabove; HEAD OF THE BOARD
- Board of Directors;
- Members of the Board of
Supervisors;
- Save: Office, Board of
Supervisors. Nguyen Thi Hong Dung



VIETNAM MARITIME THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
DEVELOPMENT Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No.: /BC-HDQT Hai Phong, March ..., 2025

REPORT

On activities of the Company's Board of Directors in 2024
and operation plan in 2025

To: Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

The Board of Directors of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company for
the 2022-2027 term respectfully reports to the General Meeting of Shareholders on the
operational results of the Board of Directors in 2024 and the operation plan for 2025, as
follows:

I. Business and production operation results in 2024

Implementing the resolutions assigned by the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders, the Board of Directors has executed plans, established orientations, and devised
solutions to achieve the set objectives. The Board of Directors operates on a collective
principle, strictly adhering to its functions, duties, and authorities as stipulated by law and the
Company's Charter, ensuring objectivity and focus in directing and supervising the
Company's management and operations. The key performance results are as follows:

Unit: million VND

. ° .
No. Indicators : l}’;;; ) Implifln;%l;t:tlon Yo Imp/lle);zzntatlon
1 Revenue 215,000 226,611 105.4%
2 Pre-tax Profit 19,000 19,159 100.8 %
3 Dividend ratio 10%

II. Performance of the Board of Directors in 2024
1. Evaluation of Company Governance

The Board of Directors has managed the Company in accordance with its Charter and
legal regulations. Based on the resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and actual



business conditions, the Board of Directors has continuously directed corporate governance
and business operations. The Board of Directors has conducted many regular and
extraordinary meetings to issue resolutions and decisions critical to enhancing business
efficiency while ensuring compliance with the resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders. Additionally, the Board has promptly addressed and resolved issues arising
within the Company's operations.

The Board has closely followed the resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders,
market developments and company’s operation to provide strategic directions and policies
that positively impact on the Company's operations, ensuring stability and sustainable growth.

In 2024, the Board of Directors of the Company held five meetings, conducted 40 rounds of
written consultations with Board members, and issued 41 Resolutions and 10 Decisions
across various areas to ensure effective corporate governance. The Board diligently fulfilled
its management and supervisory duties over all business and production activities of the
Company. The meetings were attended by the Company's Supervisors, and some meetings
also included the participation of other management members.

2. Evaluation of operation of Board of Directors’ members

In 2024, the members of the Board of Directors fully participated in the Board of
Directors' meetings, fully contributed their opinions in writing/email on issues under the
authority of the Board of Directors with a high sense of responsibility, promoting the
leadership capacity of the Board of Directors' members, for the benefit of shareholders and
the development of the Company.

3. Evaluate the monitoring results for the Company's Board of General Directors.

The Board of Directors supervises the activities of the Company's Board of General
Directors in accordance with the Company's Charter and current regulations, supports and
creates maximum conditions for the Board of General Directors to proactively promote
production and business activities to complete the planning targets assigned by the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

In 2024, the position of General Director of the Company changed. However, the
handover and acceptance of tasks was always supported by the Company's Board of
Directors, the new personnel made great efforts to grasp and continuously operate the
Company's operations without affecting the Company's production and business activities.

The Company's production and business activities in 2024 still faced many difficulties:
Land rental prices are increasing, especially in Ho Chi Minh City; The geographical location
of warehouses is no longer favorable for the exploitation of shipping lines, so they mainly
exploit container leasing and infrastructure leasing; Fuel business activities continue to be
affected by the conflict between Russia and Ukraine, followed by the conflict between
countries in the Middle East, and unpredictable fluctuations in gasoline prices. With the



efforts of the Board of General Directors and all employees, the Company has made efforts to
gradually overcome difficulties to complete important targets assigned by the General
Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors.

In the coming time, the Board of General Directors needs to focus on resolving
outstanding issues, promoting market development, expanding customers, maintaining
traditional services, and completing the planning targets assigned by the General Meeting of
Shareholders and the Board of Directors. In particular, it is necessary to focus on improving
the quality of labor, means, equipment, and infrastructure to provide services for VIMC
Lines, while seriously implementing the resolutions and decisions of the Board of Directors
and effectively implementing the key solutions that have been approved.

4. Report on transaction status with related parties

- On April 5, 2024, the Board of Directors issued Resolution No.37/NQ-PTHH
approving the Company to sign a fuel supply contract with Saigon Port Joint Stock Company
- a subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC;

- On May 10, 2024, the Board of Directors issued Resolution No.59/NQ-PTHH
approving the Company to sign a Contract for providing container management services at
the yard with VIMC Shipping Company - Branch of Vietnam Maritime Corporation -
Affiliate of Vietnam Maritime Corporation;

- On May 27, 2024, the Board of Directors issued Resolution No.65/NQ-PTHH
approving the Company to sign a Contract in principle for transporting containerized goods
with Vietnam Container Operation Limited Company - a subsidiary of Vietnam Maritime
Corporation - JSC;

- On August 14, 2024, the Board of Directors issued Resolution No.114/NQ-PTHH
approving the Company to sign a Contract to provide transportation services with Cai Lan

port Investment Joint Stock Company - both subsidiaries of Vietnam Maritime Corporation -
JSC;

- On October 31, 2024, the Board of Directors issued Resolution No.165/NQ-PTHH
approving the Company to sign a Car Rental Contract with VIMC Container Lines Joint
Stock Company - the parent company.

- On December 13, 2024, the Board of Directors issued Resolution No.181/NQ-PTHH
on approving the Company to sign a sea and road transport contract with VIMC Container
Lines Joint Stock Company - the parent company, transactions with VIMC Dinh Vu Port
Joint Stock Company, also a subsidiary of VIMC Container Lines Joint Stock Company.

I1. Results of implementing the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.



In order to implement the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders, the Company has implemented solutions to carry out the assigned plan,
specifically as follows:

1. Regarding the implementation of the production and business plan:

Total revenue: VND 226,611 billion, reaching 105,4% of the plan; Profit before tax:
VND 19,159 billion, reaching 100,8% of the plan.

2. On the implementation of indicators on investment, equipment procurement,
maintenance and repair

The total investment plan, equipment purchase and maintenance and repair in 2024 after
supplementation is VND 19.935 million. Specifically:

- Investment categories: VND 17.415 million; Implementation: VND 957 million

- Maintenance and repair categories: VND 2.320 million; Implementation: VND 536
million

- Information Technology system, digital transformation: VND 200 million;
Implementation: VND 150 million

The total volume of implementation in 2024 is VND 1.643 million, reaching 8,2% of the
plan.

Existing issues, obstacles, and implemented solutions:

- The Company's existing container warehouses are no longer conveniently located, and
need to be converted and invested in building large-scale, modern warehouses to improve
land use efficiency. However, the Company's resources is limited and has not yet found
customers or partners for investment cooperation;

- Some of the Company's land funds have incomplete legal documents, are project land,
and cannot be invested in upgrading (in Ho Chi Minh City). The Company needs to find land
funds to invest in new yards, but the search is difficult or the land rental price is high, not
ensuring exploitation efficiency.

- After the Company's resources was transferred to the parent company, VIMC Lines,
the Company took on the task of being the organization that collects goods from the
provinces, focusing on transporting them to VIMC Dinh Vu Port and vice versa. Meanwhile,
the Company still has many limitations in terms of business size and human resources
capacity, so finding land funds to invest in inland waterway ports, warehouses, and ICDs to
create a logistics chain to collect goods to Hai Phong is difficult. Therefore, these planned
investment items have not achieved specific results.

- In 2024, the Company plans to invest in building infrastructure on Nam Hoa 5 Depot -
a yard leased from another enterprise. However, due to some disputes and the quality of the
yard is not guaranteed, the Company has stopped investing and terminated the yard lease



contract, therefore, the estimated cost of construction and equipment (container forklift) of the
project has not been implemented.

- The Company's real estate projects in Ho Chi Minh City are at a standstill, the
Company needs to cooperate with partners to develop the projects (Currently the Company
has found a cooperative partner, City Garden Joint Stock Company).

3. Regarding profit distribution in 2023

The Company has made provisions for funds and distributed net profit in 2023, and
paid dividends of 11,4% in accordance with the Resolution approved by the 2024 General
Meeting of Shareholders.

4. Regarding the Selection of the Auditing Firm for the 2024 Financial Statements

Based on the approval of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the
Board of Directors of the Company has selected UHY Auditing and Consulting Company
Limited to review the Company's financial statements on June 30, 2024 and audit the
Company's financial statements on December 31, 2024.

5. Regarding remuneration and operating expenses of the Board of Directors and
the Board of Supervisors of the Company

The Company has paid remuneration to the Board of Directors’ members and non-
executive members of Board of Supervisors according to the Resolution of the 2024 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders approved:

- For non-executive Chairman of the Board of Directors, the salary is VND 10,000,000
per person per month;

- For Board of Directors’ member and Non-executive Head of Board of Supervisors,
the remuneration is VND 6.000.000 per person per month;

- For Non-executive members of the Board of Supervisors, the salary is VND
4,000,000 per person per month.

6. Select options and seek alternative partners for business cooperation and
investment cooperation to develop projects in the South.

Based on the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
approved, to continue looking for partners to develop projects in the South, the Company has
implemented:

+ Signing service contracts to appraise the value of assets on land, costs invested in
land and land use rights advantages at projects;

+ Sign a legal consulting service contract with the Law Firm;

+ On March 29, 2024, the Board of Directors approved the Plan for finding business
and investment cooperation partners for projects. The plan outlined the most basic



information of the projects, the difficulties and obstacles of the projects. On that basis, the
requirements for participating partners must meet specific and appropriate capacities for
selection. The selection criteria are evaluated by specific scores to select the most suitable
partners and at the same time, demonstrate openness and transparency in the selection.

From April 1, 2024, the Company has published an Invitation for Partners to
Cooperate in Project Development on its website and mass media. By the deadline for
submission at 5:00 PM on May 15, 2024, the Company received 01 proposal for cooperation
from City Garden Joint Stock Company.

After collecting the opinions of the members, the General Director, Head of the
Advisory Group (established under Decision No. 71/QD-PTHH dated June 3, 2024 of the
Board of Directors of the Company) reported and was approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company on the results of selecting business cooperation partners, investment
cooperation to develop the Company's real estate projects in Ho Chi Minh City, choosing City
Garden Joint Stock Company as a cooperation partner.

After the Memorandum of Understanding was preliminarily agreed upon by both
parties, the Company forwarded it to the legal consulting firm for review and feedback to
safeguard the Company's rights and interests in accordance with the law.

On October 10, 2024, the Company and its partners signed a Memorandum of
Understanding on cooperation, serving as a basis for the two parties to jointly develop
business cooperation and investment cooperation plans and move towards signing a
Cooperation Contract for each project.

II1. Tasks and directions of the Company's Board of Directors in 2025

In 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company will continue to direct the Company's
operations to complete the set goals, strategies, and plans for production and business
development, while promptly monitoring and directing the Company's Executive Board in
implementing the Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of
Directors of the Company.

In April 2024, Vietnam Maritime Corporation established VIMC Container Lines Joint
Stock Company (VIMC Lines) from capital contributions in cash, assets, the entire value of
Vietnam Maritime Corporation’s capital contribution at VIMC Dinh Vu Port Joint Stock
Company and the entire value of Vietnam Maritime Corporation’s capital contribution at the
Company.

From August 2024, Vietnam Maritime Corporation officially transferred all 51% of its
shares held in the Company to VIMC Lines, the Company became a subsidiary of VIMC
Lines. Thus, the Company has participated in the ecosystem of VIMC Lines including:
Seaports, shipping and maritime services, logistics. The Company has the full advantage of
developing logistics services in the ecosystem of VIMC Lines.



Therefore, from now on, the Company needs to select and focus on developing core and
sustainable business lines for the Company in the short-term, medium-term and long-term
plans.

With the current situation, the Company needs to urgently review resources, improve the
quality of labor, means, equipment, infrastructure, and implement the goal of restructuring
products, services, and the scale of production and business activities. This is a strategic goal
when some current and future services no longer have room for development.

On that basis, the Company aims to become an important link in the VIMC Lines
ecosystem. With its strengths in infrastructure and many years of experience in warehouse
exploitation, the Company aims to provide complete logistics service chains, enhance
customer experience and expand market share in Vietnam.

Taking technology as the core for development, the Company focuses on building
modern logistics solutions, suitable for the supply chain system, to optimize management and
operations. At the same time, the Company strengthens connections with customers, ensures
outstanding service quality, increases core values and gradually realizes the strategic vision
set out.

In the near future, the Company needs to gradually take over a part of the service, then
take over the entire road transport service and logistics service chain of VIMC Lines;
strengthen market development to gradually provide forwarding service for VIMC Lines.

1. Production and business plan targets for 2025

. Implementation . .
No. Indicators in 2024 Plan in 2025 Comparison
(1) (2) (3) (4) (4)/(3)
Revenue (million .
1 VND) 226,611 235,000 103.7%
2 Cost (million VND) 207,452 219,000 105.6%
Profit before tax o
3 (million VND) 19,159 16,000 83.51%
4 Ebitda 22,749 19,688 86.54%
5 Dividend payment

2. Market development work

- Strengthen market and customer activities, build target customer portraits and issue
the Company's action statement "Vimadeco builds a customer-centric culture, from statement
to action". Search and expand new sources of goods and customers for the warehouse and
yard system. Continue to develop logistics chain services for customers in the North and
South to increase logistics revenue and non-traditional revenue.



- Closely coordinate to provide logistics services (door goods) for VIMC Lines,
moving towards taking over all of these services of VIMC Lines. At the same time, focus on
expanding the market step by step to provide forwarding services for VIMC Lines;

- Maintain and develop the market of container leasing, container shipping, domestic
container rental, warehouse and yard exploitation, logistics, road transport and fuel supply;

- Develop multimodal transport services according to the general market trend
(combining inland waterway transport and road transport) to improve service quality and
protect the green living environment;

3. Finance and investment work

- Continue to implement effective cost management, review, evaluate, and reduce
unnecessary costs.

- Increase capital efficiency and effectively implement debt control and recovery
measures to ensure financial safety, operating cash flow and minimize risks.

- Improve and strengthen financial management, enhance financial supervision
function from the Company to Branches, apply information technology in financial reporting
and financial supervision.

- Review and develop a mechanism for collecting receivables, especially doubtful
debts, to ensure financial resources for the Company's production and business activities.

- Search, expand, invest in exploiting ICD/Depot in Hai Phong, Bac Ninh, Ho Chi
Minh area with suitable land size, convenient transportation and connection with Ports and
industrial parks, can invest, cooperate with other units or lease long term for stability and
long-term development.

- Research investment, investment cooperation or joint venture investment in
ICD/inland waterway terminals in Bac Giang, Ha Nam, Hanoi and neighboring provinces,
creating a two-way transport route to Hai Phong.

- Continue to research solutions to remove difficulties, implement investment
cooperation, and business cooperation for projects in the South.

- Consider and choose the appropriate time to transfer all of the Company's investment
capital at QTM International Joint Stock Company.

- Searching for land to build new depots in the South and North for investment or
investment cooperation.

4. Corporate Governance

- Continue reviewing, assessing, and standardizing internal processes, operational
procedures, and regulations related to the Company's business activities. At the same time,
develop innovative solutions to enhance corporate governance and management, aiming to
provide customers with the highest quality services.



- Continue reviewing and assessing the current state of human resources to restructure
and streamline the organizational system, ensuring efficiency, reducing intermediaries, and
strengthening the accountability of department heads. Develop a high-quality workforce with
a focus on technical personnel, corporate governance, and technology management. Innovate
the recruitment process, enhance training activities, and foster a strong internal training and
coaching culture.

- Continue reviewing, revising, and supplementing internal regulations to support the
Company's operations. Develop standardized, digitized, and streamlined processes with
continuous improvements to provide customers with the highest quality services and create a
business environment that fosters flexibility, autonomy, and accountability.

- Complete standard operating procedures (SOPs) and implement approved SOPs.
Promote Kaizen culture.

- Organize and operate the enterprise risk management system in production and
business activities using the Risk Control Sheet.

5. Strongly promote the digital transformation process
- Digital transformation of office administration operations.

- Complete information technology applications to meet production and business
activities, corporate governance, human resource management, finance and accounting...

- Carry out communication work to develop the Company's brand.
6. Staff training and salary policy:

- Continue to improve the salary system to evaluate capacity standards according to
position, work value, work results according to KPI; focus on improving the treatment,
welfare, and reasonable rewards to maintain the existing human resources and at the same
time attract talents to the Company.

- Strengthen training and retraining of staff to improve the qualifications and
professional skills of workers. Build high-quality human resources to ensure production and
business efficiency for the Company.

7. Inspection and supervision work:
- Strengthen inspection and supervision work according to regulations.

- Organize regular inspection and supervision of the implementation of assigned goals,
strategies, plans, tasks and implementation of regulations and charters to ensure compliance;
evaluate the business's performance; promptly correct violations.

8. Developing corporate culture and social security activities:

- Deploy and implement the core cultural foundation "VIMC Cultural Compass" to all
employees.



- Build a culture of listening, understanding, dedication, willingness to share with
customers, taking customers as the center to serve with the most enthusiastic spirit.

- Continue to develop a customer-oriented corporate culture, a culture of teamwork and
responsibility for work.

- Create an equal working environment based on corporate culture.

- Strengthen information and propaganda work to raise awareness for managers at all
levels, businesses and employees about their responsibility in implementing social security
associated with sustainable development of enterprises.

Above is the report on the activities of the Board of Directors of Vietnam Maritime
Development Joint Stock Company in 2024 and the operation plan for 2025.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to sincerely thank our shareholders,
the Board of Supervisors, the Executive Board, the leaders of the units, branches and all
employees in the Company for joining hands with us to overcome difficulties to achieve
certain results in the past year and build a Company that is always united and unified with the
goal of increasingly sustainable development.

Wish delegates and shareholders good health and happiness!
Wish the Meeting great success!

O/B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Recipients: CHAIRMAN
- As above;
- Save: General Affairs Department.
Le Duy Duong
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VIETNAM MARITIME THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

DEVELOPMENT Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No.: /BC-DHDCD Hai Phong, March ..., 2025

REPORT OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
ON OPERATIONS, MONITORATION AND SUPERVISION RESULTS IN
2024, AND THE OPERATION PLAN FOR 2025

To: 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of

Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019,

Pursuant to Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the
Government detailing the implementation of a number of articles of the Law on
Securities;

Pursuant to Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020 of the
Ministry of Finance on guiding a number of articles on corporate governance
applicable to public companies in Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP;

Pursuant to the Charter of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock
Company;

Pursuant to the Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance of Vietnam
Maritime Development Joint Stock Company;

Pursuant to the Operating Regulations of the Board of Supervisors of Vietnam
Maritime Development Joint Stock Company;

Pursuant to Resolution No.75/NQ-DHDCD dated June 26, 2023 of the 2023
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint
Stock Company;

Based on the 2024 Financial Statements of Vietnam Maritime Development

Joint Stock Company audited by UHY Auditing And Consulting Company Limited.

The Board of Supervisors (“BOS”) of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint
Stock Company (“Company”) respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders (“General Meeting”) on the 2024 operations and the 2025

operations plan of the Board of Supervisors as follows:



PART I. OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

1. Number of members of the Board of Supervisors

The Company's Board of Supervisors currently consists of 03 members:

(1) Mrs. Nguyen Thi Hong Dung - Head of Board of Supervisors

(2) Mrs. Do Lan Huong - Member of the Board of Supervisors

(3) Mr. Pham Quoc Hung - Member of the Board of Supervisors

At the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the General Meeting of
Shareholders approved the dismissal of Mrs. Duong Thi Hong Hanh - Head of the
Board of Supervisors and elected Mrs. Nguyen Thi Hong Dung as a member of the
Board of Supervisors, holding the position of Head of the Board of Supervisors.

2. Results of the Board of Supervisors' operations in 2024

In fulfillment of the tasks assigned by the General Meeting of Shareholders,
the Board of Supervisors in 2024 oversaw the activities of the Board of Directors
and the Executive Board, as well as inspected the Company's business operations
and financial status. The inspection and supervision process was conducted with
integrity, diligence, and professional ethics, ensuring that it did not interfere with
the Company's business activities.

The Board of Supervisors held five meetings in 2024, with full attendance of all
its members. The meetings covered various topics, including the approval of the
inspection and supervision report on the 2023 financial statements, the report
presented at the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders, and the election of the Head
of the Board of Supervisors following the dismissal and appointment of a new
member by the General Meeting of Shareholders. Additionally, the Board reviewed
and approved the mid-year inspection and supervision report for the first half of 2024,
monitored the Company's business operations for the third quarter of 2024,
summarized the implementation of the 2024 activity plan, and agreed on the 2025
activity plan for the Board of Supervisors. Furthermore, Board members regularly
exchanged work-related matters via phone and email.

The Board of Supervisors has closely followed the Resolution of the 2024
General Meeting of Shareholders, the operation plan and the actual situation,
properly performed its responsibilities and powers as prescribed by the Enterprise
Law and the Company's Charter. The Board of Supervisors has maintained a good
working relationship and coordinated with the Board of Directors and the
Company's Executive Board. The Board of Supervisors has fully implemented
monitoring reports and other reports when requested. The members of the Board of
Supervisors work with a high sense of responsibility, according to the principles of
independence and prudence, always for the benefit of shareholders and the

Company.



3. Evaluation of operations of members of the Board of Supervisors

- The members of the Board of Supervisors have operated in compliance
with the provisions of law, the Company’s Charter and the Operating Regulations of
the Company's Board of Supervisors.

- Each member has completed the tasks of monitoring, checking and
evaluating the assigned work contents seriously and honestly. During the
implementation of the tasks, the members of the Board of Supervisors regularly
discuss and support the remaining members to perform the work objectively and
achieve the highest efficiency.

- Members have been proactive in their work, have contributed many ideas to
the Board of Directors/Executive Board, contributing to the completion of assigned
tasks.

4. Remuneration and operating expenses of the Board of Supervisors in
2024

All members of the Board of Supervisors operate on a part-time basis;
therefore, no salaries are incurred. The remuneration and operating expenses of the
Board of Supervisors' members are implemented in accordance with the resolutions
of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Company's policies, and in compliance
with the Company's Charter and the Law on Enterprises. In 2024, the total
remuneration for the Board of Supervisors' members was VND 168 million.

The operating expenses of the Board of Supervisors are carried out in
accordance with the expenditure norms prescribed in the Company's internal
regulations and rules.

5. Recommendations of the Board of Supervisors:

In 2024, in the process of performing its duties, the Board of Supervisors
gave opinions and recommendations on the activities of the Board of Directors, the
Board of General Director in managing and operating production and business
activities as follows:

- Recommend the Board of Directors to develop and issue the Board of
Directors' action plan for 2024 for implementation.

- Recommend the Company to complete the performance evaluation system
according to KPI and implement 3Ps salary payment according to the plan reported
to the Corporation.

- Recommend implementing an effective cost management program to
enhance control and management of revenue and production and business costs.

- Recommendations on management and collection of receivables, especially

overdue debts.



- Propose to review and improve the efficiency of yard exploitation, business
cooperation contracts with partners, vehicle fleet, etc. to implement the production
and business plan assigned by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

PART II. RESULTS OF MINITORATION AND SUPERVISION

1. Results of monitoring the Board of Directors' activities

- In 2024, the Company's Board of Directors successfully held the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders on April 10, 2024.

- The Board of Directors held 05 meetings and conducted 40 written
consultations on matters under its authority, the participants of the Board of
Directors' meetings and provided comments on the contents of the full written
consultations. At the Board of Directors’ meetings as well as via email, members
provided constructive comments or responsibly responded to matters under the
authority and responsibility of the Board of Directors. In 2024, the Board of
Directors issued 41 Resolutions and 10 in many areas to implement the Resolutions
of the General Meeting of Shareholders, carry out corporate governance, manage
and supervise the Company's production, business and investment activities. The
Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of Directors were issued within their
authority, in accordance with the Company's Charter and the provisions of law.

- The implementation of information disclosure is directed by the Board of
Directors to comply with the provisions of law.

- The Board of Directors has operated in accordance with the functions,
duties and powers stipulated in the Company's Charter, the Internal Regulations on
Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors' Operating Regulations and current
legal regulations. The members of the Board of Directors fully attended the
meetings of the Board of Directors, studied and commented on the reports and
proposals of the Executive Board to the Board of Directors, and at the same time,
contributed opinions and proposed solutions to contribute to improving the
efficiency of the Company's operations. At some meetings of the Board of
Directors, the Executive Board also participated in explaining and reporting
directly. The Board of Directors issued resolutions/decisions according to collective
opinions, ensuring the interests of the Company and the rights of shareholders.

2. Results of monitoring the activities of the General Director

- During the year the Company changed its General Director from November
1, 2024, the General Director and the Executive Board proactively implemented the
tasks and production and business plan targets approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders and the Board of Directors. During the operation, the Executive Board

always demonstrated a sense of responsibility when taking on tasks, overcoming



difficulties, and finding solutions. Improve production efficiency of each business
segment.

- The General Director and the Executive Board comply with the provisions of
law related to corporate governance; properly implement the provisions of the
Company’s Charter, the instructions of the Board of Directors, receive and
implement necessary solutions in corporate governance according to the instructions
of the Board of Directors and recommendations of the Board of Supervisors.

- The use and management of the Company's assets must comply with the
provisions of law and the Company's regulations.

- Ensure employee benefits according to State regulations and the Company's
salary regulations; create a good working environment, implement the Collective
Labor Agreement, and other benefits for employees.

- The company entered the implementation of the 2024 plan in a difficult
situation: The geographical location of the warehouses is no longer favorable for the
exploitation of shipping lines, so they mainly exploit container leasing and
infrastructure leasing. At the same time, the leasing partner has legal changes
leading to unstable warehouse leasing. However, the Company's Executive Board
has implemented solutions to improve service quality, expand commercial business
lines, effectively manage costs and lead to positive changes in fleet and yard
operations and expand service activities at both the Company's Office and branches.
In 2024, the Company's total revenue reached VND 226,612 million, reaching
105% of the plan, pre-tax profit reached VND 19,159 million, completing 101% of
the plan.

+ For fuel supply activities: maintain services and increase output for existing
customers; find new customers; grasp market developments to have appropriate
buying/selling solutions to help improve production and business efficiency.

+ Find a stable source of customers, increase fleet productivity, improve
profitable fleet business results in 2024.

+ Completing and applying the 3Ps salary regulations helps ensure fairness
and attract high-quality human resources.

+ Restructure human resources to suit the actual situation to reduce costs and
improve production and business efficiency.

III. Results of appraisal of the 2024 production and business situation
report, monitoring the implementation of the Resolution of the 2024 General
Meeting of Shareholders

1. Results of appraisal of production and business situation report

The Board of Supervisors agrees with the report of the Board of Directors and

the Executive Board on the Company's production and business situation in 2024.
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In 2024, the Board of Directors, Executive Board and all employees have

strived to implement the assigned plan targets, with the following results:

Unit: Million VND

) 2024 Comparison
INDICATORS Impl.ementatlon . | Implementation | Implementation
in 2023 Plan | Implementation | ~5,, 42023 | 2024/ Plan 2024
Total revenue 171,845 | 215,000 226,612 132% 105%
Net revenue 162,945 213,827 131%
Financial revenue 4,452 8,778 197%
Other income 4,448 4,004 90%
Total cost 153,777 | 196,000 207,450 134% 105%
Cost of goods sold 137,695 187,085 135%
and services
rendered
Selling expenses 721.6 785.7 108%
General and 16,022 18,668 116%
administrative
expenses
Financial expenses (685.1) 286.4
Other expenses 24.3 626
Profit before tax 18,069 | 19,000 19,159 106% 101%
Profit after tax 14,508 15,374 105%

2. Results of monitoring the implementation of the Resolution of the

General Meeting of Shareholders

In 2024, the Company implemented a number of contents according to

the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders as follows:

2.1. Fund allocation and dividend payment in 2023

In 2024, the Company made provisions for funds and paid dividends for

2023 in accordance with the contents approved by the 2024 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders.

2.2. Implement the investment, purchase, maintenance and repair plan

The Company's investment and repair plan for 2024 is VND 18,925 million.

The implementation status in 2024 is as follows:




Unit: Million VND

Indicator (%) Delivery Plan Imple;l)ezlél‘tatlon Imple/lll)lleal:ltatlon
Investment plan 16,405 957 5.8%
Repair plan 2,320 536 23.1%
IT systems 200 150 75%
Total 18,925 1,643 8.7%

Investment performance in 2024 is lower than the plan approved at the
General Meeting of Shareholders, due to:

- At Nam Hoa 5 Depot Project: Disputes arose regarding liabilities between
the construction contractor for the yard and the lessor, additionally, since May 2024,
subsidence issues have occurred due to substandard quality. As a result, the
Company ceased yard operations on June 30, 2024, and halted project investment.

- The Company has not yet identified a suitable land fund for conducting
investment research on the ICD/Depot/inland waterway port system in areas such as
Hai Phong; Ho Chi Minh City, Can Tho, Dong Nai, and Binh Duong; Ha Nam, and
neighboring provinces.

- The company is still in the process of searching for suitable partners to
conduct research on warehouse investment in Hai Phong; choosing the right time to
invest in upgrading the power system of Dong Hai yard, Hai Phong.

2.3. Selection of the auditing firm for financial statements

The Company has selected UHY Auditing and Consulting Company Limited
to review the Semi-Annual Financial Statements and audit the 2024 Financial
Statements. The auditing company is on the list of auditing units approved by the
2024 General Meeting of Shareholders.

2.4. Remuneration of members of the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors

The company has complied with the Resolution of the General Meeting of
Shareholders, paying at the level approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
The total remuneration paid to members of the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors is VND 576 million.

IV. Evaluation Results of the 2024 Financial Statements

1. Financial Statement Appraisal

The Board of General Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the Company's financial statements in accordance with accounting
standards, the Vietnamese corporate accounting system and relevant legal
regulations on the preparation and presentation of financial statements; and is

responsible for internal control that the Board of Directors determines is necessary
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to ensure that the preparation and presentation of financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The 2024 financial statements were audited by UHY Auditing and
Consulting Co., Ltd. The auditors expressed their opinion: “in our opinion, the
accompanied financial statements as at 31 December 2024 and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 in
accordance with Vietnamese accouting Standards, Vietnamese corporate
accounting system and related legal regulations on the preparation and
presentatuon of the financial statements ™.

The auditor also raised the following issues to emphasize:

(i) As presented in Note 14 - Construction in progress, the Company is
recording investment in progress for the Bac Rach Biec - Phuoc Binh Project at
31/12/2024 with a value of VND 36.57 billion (at 31/12/2023 the value was VND
36.41 billion) and the Bac Rach Biec - Phuoc Long A Project at 31/12/2024 with a
value of VND 12.65 billion (at 31/12/2023 the value was VND 12.62 billion). These
projects are being inspected by State management agencies regarding the
implementation of these projects, up to the time of preparing this report, there is still
no final conclusion on the inspection work. The Board of General Directors of the
Company has conducted an assessment and is fully confident that the projects can
still proceed with implementation.

(i1) In Note 35.1, the Company has presented the potential liability payable to
SACA Joint Stock Company, but has not specifically determined the obligation to
pay due to the disputed land area to be transferred to SACA Joint Stock Company,
which is in dispute with Vinh Loc Limited Liability Company.

These matters to be emphasized do not affect the audit opinion expressed.

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the Company's Interim Financial
Statements and Financial Statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024,
which have been reviewed and audited by UHY Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd,
which is on the list of auditing firms approved at the 2024 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders. The Board of Supervisors agrees with the auditor's opinion on the
Company's 2024 Financial Statements.

In addition, Board of Supervisors would like to note the following issues:

+ The Company is currently cooperating with a number of partners to exploit
warehouses belonging to the ICD Phuoc Long and Bac Rach Chiec - Phuoc Long A
projects, with a total land area of 66,236 m® of which 18,581 m” has paid annual
land rent, the remaining 47,655 m” has not yet been granted land use rights by the
State, so the Company has not yet determined the obligation to pay rent or the

benefits gained from exploiting the above land area.
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+ In 2024, the Company will not make any additional provision or reversal of
investment provisions in QTM Company. The Company needs to update QTM's
financial statements on December 31, 2024 to evaluate and review this content.

2. Evaluate some financial indicators

Based on the data in the Company's audited Financial Statements for 2023,
the Board of Supervisors assesses the Company's financial situation as follows:

2.1. Asset and resources situation on December 31, 2024
Unit: million VND

Asset structure 01/01/2024 31/12/2024 | Difference (%)

Total assets 234,320 239,348 102%
Current assets 120,791 132,560 110%
Non-current assets 113,528 106,788 94%
Total resources 234,320 239,348 102%
Liabilities, including: 83,733 87,701 105%
- Current Liabilities 21,904 23,847 109%
- Non-Current Liabilities 61,829 63,854 103%
Equity 150,586 151,647 101%
Owner's equity 90,000 90,000

Equity/ Owner's Equity (times) 1.67 1.68 101.7

- Regarding assets:

Total assets as of December 31, 2024 were VND 239.3 billion, an increase of
102% compared to the beginning of the year. Of which: Current assets were VND
132.5 billion, an increase of 10% compared to the beginning of the year, mainly due
to the increase in cash and cash equivalents during the period from revenue from
production and business activities and divestment at Hai Au Company. Non-current
assets were VND 106.7 billion, a decrease of 6% compared to the beginning of the
year, mainly due to depreciation of fixed assets and a decrease in investment in the
joint venture (Hai Au Company).

- Regarding resources:

On December 31, 2024, the total resources is VND 239.3 billion, of which:
Liabilities are VND 87.7 billion, an increase of 5% compared to the beginning of
the year, mainly due to an increase in short-term payable expenses during the period
(the Company provisioned in advance for production and business operating
expenses) and an increase in long-term collateral deposits.

2.2 Some indicators on capital funding and solvency

On On
31/12/2024 01/01/2024

No. Indicators Unit

I | Liquidity Ratios:
1 Overall Liquidity ratio

Time 2.73 2.80

9




D) Current ratio Time 5.56 5.51
3 | Immediate liquidity ratio Time 1.14 0.90
4 Quick ratio Time 5.43 5.42
I1 | Debt Ratios:
1 | Liabilities/Total assets A 36.64 35.73
2 | Liabilities/Owners’Equity % 57.83 55.60
I1I | Profitability Ratios:
1 Profit after tax/Net revenue o 7.19 8.90
(ROS) ’
5 Profit after tax /Total assets o 6.42 6.19
(ROA) °
Profit after tax / Owners’Equity 17.08 16.12
3 | (Based on charter capital) %
(ROE)

- Liquidity: The liquidity ratios on December 31, 2024 show its ability to
meet payment obligations. However, the immediate liquidity ratio is below 1,
nonetheless, the Company holds held to maturity investments in bank deposits until
maturity, ensuring its ability to settle short-term liabilities when due.

- Capital financing capacity: Liabilities account for 35.7% of total assets,
indicating a safe capital structure

- Profitability: The Company's profitability indicators in 2024 are still
guaranteed, in which profit/ Owners’Equity reaches 17.08% at a relatively high
level.

V. Evaluation of coordination between the Board of Directors, General
Director and the Board of Supervisors

- The Board of Supervisors has closely coordinated with the Board of
Directors, the General Director and the Executive Board in performing its assigned
functions and tasks. The Board of Directors and the General Director have created
favorable conditions for the Board of Supervisors to implement its tasks. The Board
of Supervisors has been provided with full information and documents related to the
Company's operations and has been invited to attend all meetings of the Board of
Directors and other necessary meetings.

- The Board of Supervisors has provided timely comments on issues related
to the Company's operations when requested by the Board of Directors and the
Company's Executive Board. The Board of Supervisors' recommendations during
inspections and supervisions have been recorded, considered and implemented by
the Board of Directors and the Company's Executive Board.

VI. Reporting on transactions with related parties
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In 2024, the Company engaged in transactions with related parties, including
Vietnam Maritime Corporation, VIMC Container Transport Joint Stock Company
(the parent company from August 5, 2024), and subsidiaries of Vietnam Maritime
Corporation such as Vietnam Container Operations Co., Ltd., VIMC Logistics Joint
Stock Company, Vietnam Shipping Agency Joint Stock Company, Hai Phong Port,
Saigon Port, among others. The Board of Supervisors emphasizes that the Company
must comply with Article 57 of its Charter regarding transactions with shareholders,
business managers, and related parties of these entities.

PART III. BOARD OF SUPERVISORS' ACTIVITY PLAN IN 2025

In exercising the powers and responsibilities of the Board of Supervisors as
prescribed in the Law on Enterprises, the Company’s Charter and the tasks assigned
at the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Board of Supervisors plans its activities
for 2025, focusing on inspecting and supervising the following main tasks:

1. Monitor the implementation of the Resolution of the General Meeting of
Shareholders, the production, business and investment plan targets for 2025 assigned
by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

2. Conduct reviews of business operation reports, interim financial statements,
and annual financial statements; assess the effectiveness of investment projects in
2025.

3. Fully participate in meetings of the Board of Directors and related meetings
to grasp the Company's production and business activities, and at the same time give
timely warnings to ensure the interests of shareholders.

4. Supervise the direction and operation of the Board of Directors and the
Executive Board in performing their duties and responsibilities in accordance with
the provisions of law and the Company's Charter.

Above is the Report on the Board of Supervisors' Operation Results in 2024;
the Board of Supervisors' supervisory performance results in 2024 and the 2025
Operation Plan, respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for

consideration and approval.

Best regards./.
Recipients: O/B. BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
- As above; HEAD OF THE BOARD

- Board of Directors;

- General Director;

- Board of Supervisors members;
- Save: Office, Board of
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Supervisors. Nguyen Thi Hong Dung
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e e

VIMARDECO

VOTING CARD
VOTER ID: VMS.OOOXXX

Full Name: NGUYEN VAN A

Number of shares in own possession: Xxxxx shares
Number of shares authorized by other shareholders: xxxx shares
Total number of voting shares: xxxxxx shares



A VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

M ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025

——

VIMRDECO BALLOT
VOTER 1D: VMS.000XXX

Full name: NGUYEN VAN A
Number of shares in own possession: Xxxxx shares

Number of shares authorized by other shareholders: xxxx shares
Total number of voting shares: xxxxxx shares

(Check the corresponding box for your choice in each content)

[s];7h [s]

L
[=]

Printing Code

CONTENT Approve | pisapprove | Abstain

Agenda Item 01: Report on the activities of the Board of Directors for the year 0 | |
2024 and the plan for 2025
Agenda Item 02: Report on the results of business operations in 2024 and the | O O
directions, tasks, and plan for 2025

Agenda Item 03: Report on the activities of the Board of Supervisors for the | O O
year 2024 and the plan for 2025
Agenda Item 04: Report on the approval of the audited financial statements for O O O
the year 2024, the plan for fund allocations, and the profit distribution for 2024

Agenda Item 05: Report on the proposal for the approval of the remuneration 0 O O
settlement for the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors for 2024 and

the plan for 2025
Agenda Item 06: Report on the selection of an independent auditing firm to | O O
conduct the audit of the financial statements for the year 2025

Guide: ,2025
Shareholders mark (X) in one of the 3 boxes: VOTER

Approve / Disapprove / Abstain each Proposal (Signature and full name)




VIETNAM MARITIME THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

DEVELOPMENT Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No........... /NO-BPHPCD Hai Phong, April ...... , 2025
DRAFT RESOLUTION

2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
VIETNAM MARITIME DEVELOPMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Pursuant to:

— The Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National Assembly of
the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020, as amended and supplemented
by Law No. 03/2022/QHI1S5 passed by the National Assembly of the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam on January 11, 2022, and its guiding documents,

— The Charter of Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company

— The Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. ... .........
BBH-DHDCD dated ...../....../2025.

The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Vietnam Maritime Development
Joint Stock Company was held at the Meeting Room, 9th Floor, Menrva Hotel, No. 4 Tran
Hung Dao, Hoang Van Thu Ward, Hong Bang District, Hai Phong City, on April 18,
2025. As of ......... on April 18, 2025, there were ..... shareholders attending in person
and by authorized representation, representing ................. shares, accounting for
......... % of the total voting shares. The meeting discussed and unanimously approved the

following matters.

RESOLVES:

Article 1. Approval of the Report on Business Performance in 2024 and the Orientation,
Tasks, and Plan for 2025 (as per Report No. ...../PTHH-BC dated ........... )
1.1 Business Performance Results in 2024:
REVEIUE: .ot e e
Profit BEOTe TaX: ....ccviiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e s e
Payments to the State Budget: As stipulated
1.2 Implementation Results of Basic Construction Investment, Equipment

Procurement, and Maintenance in 2025



Total Implementation Budget: ..........ccooeiiiiiiiiiiiiie e
1.3 Business Plan for 2025
= TOtal REVEIUE: ....ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiicit et
= Profit Before Tax: ....cocueiiiiiiiiii et
- Payments to the State Budget: .......c.ccoovieiiiiiiiiie et
- Dividend Payment P1an: ..........ccooooiiiiiiiiiiie et e
1.4 Total Planned Investment, Equipment Procurement, and Maintenance Budget for
2025:
Approval Voting Ratio: ........... shares, accounting for .......... % of the total voting
shares of all attending and voting shareholders
Article 2. Approval of the Report on the Activities of the Board of Directors in 2024 and
the Plan for 2025 (as per Report No. ....... /BC-HDPQT dated ............. )
Approval Voting Ratio: ........... shares, accounting for .......... % of the total voting
shares of all attending and voting shareholders
Article 3. Approval of the Report on the Activities of the Board of Supervisors in 2024
and the Plan for 2025 (as per Report No. ........ /BC-DHDCD dated ............. )
Approval Voting Ratio: ........... shares, accounting for .......... % of the total voting
shares of all attending and voting shareholders
Article 4. Approval of the Audited Financial Statements for 2024
Approval Voting Ratio: ........... shares, accounting for .......... % of the total voting
shares of all attending and voting shareholders

Article 5. Approval of the Plan for Fund Allocation and Profit Distribution for 2024

No. Content Amount (VND) Notes
1 Total Undistributed After-Tax Profit
as of December 31, 2024

1.1 | Retained Earnings from Previous

Years

1.2 | After-Tax Profit for 2024

2 Allocation to Funds

2.1 | Development Investment Fund

2.2 | Bonus and Welfare Fund

2.3 | Managerial Bonus Fund

3 | Remaining Profit After Fund
Allocation (3=2-1)




4 | Dividend Payout Ratio for
2024/Charter Capital

Total Dividend Payment Amount
(Timing of Execution Authorized to

the Board of Directors)

5 | Undistributed Remaining Profit
(5=3-4)

Approval Voting Ratio: ........... shares, accounting for .......... % of the total voting
shares of all attending and voting shareholders
Article 6. Approval of the Report on the Proposed Settlement of Remuneration for the
Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors in 2024 and the Plan for 2025

5.1 Total Salary of the Company’s Board of Directors Members in 2024:

5.1 Total Remuneration Paid to Non-Executive Members of the Board of Directors
and the Board of Supervisors in 2024: ......................... VND
5.3 Remuneration Plan for Non-Executive Members of the Board of Directors and the

Board of Supervisors in 2025:

Chairman of the

Board of Directors:  0.... persons, rate ...................eevenn.. VND/person-month
Member of the
Board of Directors: (.. persons, rate€ ...............c.ceeuvennnn. VND/person-month

Head of the Board

of Supervisors: 0... persons, 1ate ............ceeuvennnnn. . VND/person-month

Member of the

Board of

Supervisors: 0... persons, 1ate ............ceeuvennnnn. . VND/person-month
Approval Voting Ratio: ........... shares, accounting for .......... % of the total voting

shares of all attending and voting shareholders
Article 7. Approval of the Report on the Selection of an Independent Auditing Firm to
Audit the Company’s 2025 Financial Statements (as per Proposal No. ..../PTHH-BC

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the Board of Directors to decide on

the selection of an independent auditing firm to audit the 2025 Financial Statements of




Vietnam Maritime Development Joint Stock Company, ensuring quality, efficiency, and

reasonable costs in compliance with legal regulations, specifically as follows:

In case an agreement cannot be reached with the aforementioned auditing firms
regarding the schedule, scope, and audit fee, the Board of Directors shall select an
auditing firm from the list of approved auditors for public interest entities in 2025.

Approval Voting Ratio: ........... shares, accounting for .......... % of the total
voting shares of all attending and voting shareholders
Article 8. Enforcement Provisions
This Resolution takes effect from the date of signing.

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the Board of Directors of Vietnam
Maritime Development Joint Stock Company to be responsible for organizing the
implementation of this Resolution.

This Resolution was unanimously approved by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Maritime Development Joint Stock Company with 100% of the total

voting shares of the shareholders attending and voting at the meeting.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL
- Company Shareholders / Company Website; MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
- SSC;HNX (for reporting purposes); CHAIRPERSON OF THE MEETING

- BOD of the company (For implementation),
- Board of Supervisors of the Company (for
implementation);

- Board of Management of the Company

- Save; General Department, BOD..
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